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CORPORATE VISION, MISSION & STRATEGY

Vision

To be a Company that continuously enhances its superior technological competence
amongst the most efficient and lowest cost procedures in the industry;

Through enhancing quality of life and contributing to have a healthier future, We aim to
deliver sustainable, industry - leading financial performance and earn trust;

The company aims to produce high quality diversified finished goods at competitive
prices and to ensure a safe, melodic and challenging working environment for the
employees.

Mission

The Company should ensure a secure & rewarding investment to the shareholders and
investors, quality products to its customers, a secure, harmonious and friendly
environment for its employees, and be an ethical partner with its stakeholders;

To be a leader in the market, a world-class organization by providing competitive quality
products and superior services to our customers, while learning from their high
standard-oriented feedback for our products;

Improve an contemporary measures including cost, quality, service, speed of delivery
and mobilization by optimizing the long -term returns and growth of the business.

Strategy

L ]

To be a Company that attracts and retains outstanding people by creating a fosters
openness and cultural innovations that promote individual growth and reward-oriented
performances;

To produce a high-quality white crystalline sugar by using the highest international
standards;

To grow our base business in sugar and build those related activities where there is
an opportunity to smooth the impact of sugar price cycles;

To offer equal and fair growth opportunities to all employees;

Ensure to make investments in sugarcane growers in order to have a regular supply of
profitable sugarcane, in addition to establishing a high standard of corporate sugarcane
farming;

We provide care through empathy, fairness, trust, and support for the community in which
we exist. We always are conscious of the impact of our activities on our surrounded
environment.

1
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the thirty-fifth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
the Company will be held on Saturday, January 20, 2024, at 10:00 am. at Marina
Event Complex, 333-AA, Off Raiwind Road, Lahore to transact the following business:

1: To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting ofthe Company held
on January 28, 2023,

2. To receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended September 30, 2023, together with the Directors' and Auditors'
Reports thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year 2023-2024 and fix their remuneration. The present

Auditors M/s UHY Hassan Naeem & Co Chartered Accountants, retire and being.
eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To transact any other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.

Lahore: December 29, 2023, By order of the Board

Ahmad Jehanzeb Khan
Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 13-01-2024
to 20-01-2024 (both days inclusive) for entitlement, attending, and voting at
Annual General Meeting. Physical Transfers/CDS Transactions IDS received in order
inall respects at the close of the Business on 12-01-2024 at the Company's Share
Registrar M/s Corplink (Pvt] Ltd., Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial Area Model Town
Lahore attending of the meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member
as a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, Forms of Proxy to be valid must be
properly fitted in/executed and received at the Registered Office of the Company at
66-L, Gulberg-1l, Lahore, at least 48 hours before the time of this meeting.

3. Members are requested to provide by mail or email, a photocopy of their CNIC and
their email address to enable the Company to comply with the relevant laws.

4. In accordance with the provision of Section 242 of the Act, it is mandatory for a
listed company to pay cash dividends to shareholders only through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to
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receive dividends directly into the bank account, members are requested to
complete the particulars in the e-Credit Dividend Mandate Form.

Members are advised to ensure that they have provided valid Zakat declaration
under the Zakat & Usher Ordinance, 1980 (for Zakat exemption) to their respective
Participant/CDC Investor Account Services/Company’s Share Registrar.

. Members holding shares in physical form are encouraged to convert their physical

shares into Book Entry Form (CDC) pursuant to the requirements of Section 72 of
the Act.

. The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on September

30,2023, will also be uploaded on the Company's website.

. Members are advised to promptly notify the change in their postal address, if any, to

the Company's Share Registrar.

1
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

“In the name of ALLAH, the most gracious and most merciful”

It gives me immense pleasure to present this report to the Shareholders of M/s. Tandlianwala
Sugar Mills Limited about the overall perfformance of the Board and the effectiveness of its role in
attaining the company's aims and objectives.

The Company complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017 ("the Act")
and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“Regulations™)
concerning the composition, procedures, and meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committees. As required under Regulations, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (“the
Board") of the Company is carried out.

The company has implemented a strong governance framework supportive of effective and
prudent management of business matters, which is regarded as instrumental in achieving the
long-term success of the company. During the year, the Board Commiltees continued to work
with a great measure of proficiency. The Board as a whole has reviewed the Annual Report and
Financial Statements and is pleased to confirm that in its view the report and financial statements,
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced, and understandable.

The Board reviews its effectiveness and performance each year on a self-assessment basis. The
Board Performance assessment for the year was based on an evaluation of the integral
components i.e. Strategic Planning, Board Composition, Board Committees, Board Procedures,
Board Interactions, Board and CEO’s Compensation, Board Information, and Board & CEQ's
Effectiveness.

| believe that the strategic direction of the organization for the long term is clear and appropriate,
Further, the process adopted in developing and reviewing the overall corporate strategy and
achievement of the organization's objectives are commendable which are truly reflected by the
current financial results and performance of the organization.

The Board of Directors of the company received agendas and supporting written material
including follow-up materials in sufficient time before the Board and its Committee meetings. The
Board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The Non-Executive
and Independent Directors are equally involved in important decisions. The Board has effectively
set the tone at the top, by putting in place a transparent and vigorous system of governance.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the board of the company,
shareholders, bankers, financial institutions, our valued customers, and suppliers for their support
and assistance and workforce for their hard work, enthusiasm, and contribution made to the
company in this challenging year of the change. We look forward to the executive and other
employees of the company for their continued support and dedication to getting the same

operations in the future.

Ghazi Khan
Chairman
December 29, 2023
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

“In the name of ALLAH, the most gracious and most merciful”

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of The Board of Directors of the TSML Group, | am pleased to present the Company’s
35th Annual Statutory Report, together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
30th September 2023.

Operating and Financial Highlights:

The Punjab and KPK Governments increased the minimum support price from the previous year
and notified a new price of Rs. 300/ per 40kg. Such a significant increase appeared beneficial for
growers as the higher cane prices should have allowed the farmers to earn a handsome return on
their crop. However, despite the higher crop expectations, sugarcane harvesting remained slow
in the initial period as growers expected, as always, much higher prices than the support price
affixed. Due to a drought earlier in 2022, the yields of the sugarcane crop had dramatically

declined. This prompted an unusual and abnormal increase in sugarcane prices.

The era of making prompt payments to growers has become a regular feature in the sugar sector,
which necessitates the requirement of huge liquidity. However, the banks are generally unable to
provide working capital to mills as required. The astronomical increase in markup rates made our
financial cost jump substantially and, as such, a corresponding increase in the overall cost of sugar

production,

The financial cost has significantly increased in both our sugar division and ethanol division after
banks significantly cut down Export Refinance limits and the ones that were left had brought the
ERF interest close to the policy rate, hence the advantage of export refinancing is all but gone. On
top of this, all other components in the cost of production also jumped up substantially due to a

very high and consistent inflation in the country.

The government allowed the export of sugar, though belatedly, permitting the industry to export
250,000 tons, until the end of June 2023, which was aimed at attracting US dollars to improve

foreign exchange reserves.

TSML manufactures sugar as well as producing ethanol. We produce ethanol from our C molasses,
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while worldwide ethanol is produced from C molasses, B molasses, as well as, from clarified cane
juice. In Pakistan ethanol has always been made from C molasses. We decided this season to
become substantially indigenous in molasses production and ventured to produce ethanol from
our B molasses also, so the average combined sugar recovery for the season of the company
became slightly less, comparatively. This change in methodology contributed very positively and
was much beneficial for the overall ethanol production, with far less dependence on outside

molasses with bad quality.

The season 2022-23 crushing was better as compared to the corresponding previous year and the
company also managed to crush more sugarcane as compared to last season due to a better
management decision to crush aggressively, in order to obtain more indigenous molasses for our

distillery division, being a more viable option, as expressed earlier,

The year under consideration was full of economic and political challenges. The Government
denied further permission for the export of surplus sugar, leading to missed opportunities for the

country to earn precious foreign exchange in the most crucial economic time of Pakistan.

The finance cost of the company ballooned to Rs. 2.5 billion compared to the previous year's Rs.

1.7 hillion for the reasons stated above.

Allied Division:

The Ethanol Division of the Company continues to contribute every year. With huge exports this
year also, we were again declared as one of the |largest exporters of ethanol from Pakistan, both
in bulk & 150 mode contracts.

Our ENA product, as per years old reputation is a declared premium product in the international

market and appreciably earned good profits for the company.

In liaison with the Ethanol Division, our Top Gas (C0O2) segment remains a true alliance in the

company's operations, as always.

Season 2023-24 and Future Outlook:

In the current financial year 2023-24, the sugarcane crushing season commenced late in
November 2023. The mills have crushed more sugarcane and also produced more sugar to date,

in comparison to the same number of days of the under-review period.

The ongoing crushing season, 2023-24 envisages a further rise in earnings attributable to
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increased sugar & ethanol volumes and prices,

The management is very hopeful that the company will increase its production & revenue targets

and will perform much better in the current year in both the sugar & ethanol divisions.

The management of TSML Group during the years 2024-25 shall Insha Allah be adding the fourth
division, under the umbrella of the Company i.e. the Steel Mills division. The steel mills will be
composed of 24 tons capacity furnace, 120T high-pressure boiler with a turbine having a capacity
of 25MW. The steel mill is expected to be commercially operational during the year 2024 and will
be based on indigenous bagasse as fuel for the furnace & boiler. The saving in fuel cost shall
reduce the cost of production of steel substantially. The steel mills will produce billets and re-

rolling bars.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework:

The Directors are pleased to state that the Company is in compliance with the provisions of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG) as required by the

Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Following are the statements on the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework;

The financial statements present fairly the state of affairs of the Company, the results of

its operations, cash flow, and changes in equity;

» Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained;

=  Accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements have been
consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates

are based on reasonable prudent judgment;

« International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in the preparation of the

financial statements;

+ The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented

and monitored;

« There are no doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;
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+ There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as
detailed in the listing regulations

= A statement regarding key financial data for the last six years is annexed to this report;
« Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements;

= There is no likelihood of any delayed payments or default in respect of all loans availed by
the Company;

*  During the year 05 Board meetings were held. The minutes of the meetings were

appropriately recorded and circulated Attendance was as under:

; Board Audit Committee
Mame of Directors
Attended | Required | Attended | Required
NON — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ghazi Khan 5 5 5 5
il‘u‘lr. Tahir Farooq Malik 5 5 5 5
‘Mrﬁ. Rasheeda Begum 5 5
|Mr5. Mobina Akbar Khan 5 5
Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan 5 5 5 5
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
er. Akbar Khan 5 5
er. Haroon Khan 5 g

Six Years Review at a Glance

The six-year review at a glance is annexed.

Pattern of Shareholdings

The pattern of shareholdings as of September 30, 2023, which is required to be disclosed under
the reporting framework is annexed herewith in this report.

Audit Committee

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of three members including the
Chairman of the Committee. The Committee regularly meets per requirements of the code. The
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Committee assists the Board in reviewing the internal audit manual and internal audit system.

Human Resource Committee

The Board has constituted a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee in compliance with
the Code of Corporate Governance. The Human Resource Committee is performing its duties in
line with its terms of reference as determined by the Board of Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Board has constituted a Nomination Committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance,

Risk Management Committee

The Board has constituted a Risk Management Committee in compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance,

Board Meetings

There have been 5 meetings during the year and the attendance of each director is stated above:

Trading in Shares

Trading in shares by Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary, and their spouses and minor
children has been disclosed in FORM 34 annexed to this annual report,

Outstanding Statutory Dues

Details of outstanding dues towards minimum tax and those relating to other statutory
obligations are set out in notes 16 and 32 respectively.

Dividend
No dividend is being recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ending September 30,
2023,

Staff Retirement Benefits

The company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all employees with a qualifying service
period of six months.

Auditors

The retiring Auditors, M/s UHY Hassan Naeem & Co, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offer
themselves for appointment for the Statutory External Audit of the year ending September 30,
2024,
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Appreciation

The Board acknowledges the continued dedication and efforts of the employees of the Company.

We also acknowledge the contribution of our growers as they hold key elements of our industry
and we thank them for their continued cooperation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Akbar Khan
(Chief Executive Officer)
December 29, 2023

I 1
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SIX YEARS REVIEW AT A GLANCE

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Sales (Met)

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

(bperating, financial and

her expensgs
Chther incode
Met profit befon: wppf

Workers” profit participation fund

Met profit before Taxation
Provision for taxation

Met profit after taxation

Cash dividend
Earning per share (Hs.)

Authorized capital
Faid-up capital

Fixed capital expenditures (Net)

OPERATING RESULTS

Sugar production = Unit = |
Sugar production - Unit - 2

Sugar production - Lnit - 3

M. Tons
M. Tons
M. Tons

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Figures in "004

223 2012 2021 020 2019 018
[Rupees) {Rupees) (Rupees) {Ruapees)y [Rupees) {Rupces)
42,290,087 32,200 945 27,114,404 21,271 B85 27205875 17522 4n4
6617314 26,556,441 23,995 400 19,450 545 23,142,764 14065 516

5,672,773 1763024 3018995 1.840,940 4,153,106 1856943
3,681,778 2,774,663 2,123,859 1,927,730 2437413 1031 ET0
1,990,995 88,359 995,130 (86,790) 1,715,693 825,078
287041 649,347 87507 9T TN H5 485 79,729
1.ITR036 LOST. 706 LAOBL.643 1940 LTRLITE 904,807
128946 69213 449 404 0.547 1oneTs 55,596
2149090 UHE.ANE 133,239 1,940 1680, 199 RA0211
{639.873) (470,777 (320.993) {292 i) {234 276) {41.506)
1,500,217 517,711 T1Z,246 {281.726) 1,445,923 BOT045
12.82 440 605 (238 12.28 fBh

12000040 1 200,000 1, 2308 0D 12 (0 000 1, 200,00k 1 2060, (00

1.1°77.063 1.077.063 1.177.063 1177003 1,177.063 1177003
14,916,954 15,330,108 15,880,401 16,114,373 16,100,857 15,683,153

S0_299 97.062 95,118 77,182 oo 115 5TR26
130,316 Pk HAE B16TY G E1 105,529 u3 13y
112,845 154,683 139,572 119,427 B0L75 1 94,617
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company | TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED |

FORM 34

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the sharehclders as at | 30-09-2023 |
------ Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
161 1 100 4,728

418 101 500 193,094

68 501 1,000 56,646

60 1,001 5,000 131,638

7 5,001 10,000 48,154

8 10,001 15,000 105,681

4 15,001 20,000 69,107

1 20,001 25,000 21,500

1 140,001 145,000 144,300

1 550,001 555,000 552,500

2 1,380,001 1,395,000 13,400,626

1 1,395,001 1,400,000 1,395,343

1 1,400,001 1,405,000 1,401,747

1 3,290,001 3,295,000 3,294,155

1 5,455,001 5,460,000 5,459,419

1 7,635,001 7,640,000 7,639,578

1 20,195,001 20,200,000 20,197,535

1 20,250,001 20,255,000 20,253,274

1 21,575,001 21,580,000 21,575,857

1 21,760,001 21,765,000 21,761,418

740 117,706,300

2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 99 991,922 84.9504%

and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies,
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
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2.3.3 Banks Development 181,489 0.1542%
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.4 Shareholders holding 10% 99,989,900 84.9486%
or more

2.3.5 General Public
a. Local 17,532,889 14.8955%

2.3.6 Others (to be specified)

I 1
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on September 30, 2023

No. of
Sr.No. |Name ot Haki Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 MR. AKBAR KHAN 32,203,418  27.3501%
2 MR. HAROON KHAN 23,163,165  19.6788%
3 MR. GHAZI KHAN 22,975,300  19.5192%
4 MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM 21,648,017  18.3016%
5 MRS. MOBINA AKBAR KHAN 1,000 0.0008%
6 MR. HUMAYUN AKHTAR KHAMN 522 0.0004%
T MR. TAHIR FAROOGQ MALIK 500 0.0004%
Executives: -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 181,489 0.1542%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Sharehoalders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

5. No,

L S

MName

MR. AKBAR KHAN

MR. HAROOMN KHAN

MR. GHAZI KHAN

MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM

MR. HAMEED ULLAH KHAN PARACHA

Holding
32,203,418
23,163,165
22,975,300
21,648,017

7,639,578

Percentage
27.3591%
19.6788%
19.5192%
18.3916%

6.4904%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No
1

NAME
ME. AKBAR KHAN

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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3.

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Mame of Company: Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited

Year Ended: 30 September 2023

The statement is presented in compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (herein referred to as “The Regulations”) providing a

framework for corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner:

The total number of Directors are seven (07) as per the following:

a) Male: 05
b) Female: 02

The composition of the Board is as under:
Category Names

Executive Directors:

M. Akbar Khan
M. Haroon Khan

Non-Executive Directors:

Male:

hr. Ghazi Khan

Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan
Female:

Mrs. Rasheeda Begum
Mrs.  Maobina Akbar Khan

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director an more than

seven listed companies, including this company;

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and
significant policies for the company. The Board has ensured that a complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,
by a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
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10.

1.

12,

13.

14.

requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording, and
circulating minutes of the meeting of the Board,

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the
remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

All the Directors on the Board are well conversant with their responsibilities as
Directors of corporate bodies as the Company had arranged a briefing for its Directors
to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities. All the Directors of the Company
are exempt from obtaining certification under Directors’ training programs (DTP) per
criteria i-e 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the board of a listed
company.

The Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment, and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations. However, no new appointment was made during the year.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed an audit committee. It comprises of the following 03 (Three)
Directors :

MName Designation

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairman / Member
M. Ghazi Khan Member

hAr. Tahir Faroog Malik Member

The Board has formed a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. |t
comprises of the following 03 (Three) Directors:

Name Designation

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairman / Member
Mrs. Rasheeda Begum Member

Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik Member

The Board has not constituted a separate "Nomination Committee” and “Risk
Management Committee” as the responsibilities of these committees are being taken
care of at the Board level when required. Therefore, a need for the separate formation
of these committees does not exist.

The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented,
and advised to the committees for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committees were as
follows:

a) Audit Committee: 05 meetings held during the year ended on September 30,
2023
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b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 01 meetings held during the year ended
on September 30, 2023.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal
audit function to those who are considered suitably qualified and experienced
professionals for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of
the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed, that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan ("ICAP") and registered with the Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations, or any
other regulatory requirement, and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the
regulations have been complied with; except the following:

a) The Company did not have any Independent Director during the year ended 30
September 2023 as per the requirement of clause (1) of
Section 6 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

b) Mone of the members (including the Chairman) of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director as per sub-clause (i)&(ii) of clause 1 of Section 27 of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

c) None of the members of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee is
an Independent Director as per Section 28(1) & (2) of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

d) The CFO of the Company also holds the position of Company Secretary.

On Behalf of the Board

Ghazi Khan
Lahore: December 29, 2023 CHAIRMAN

I 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended
September 30, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it
does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identitication of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended September 30, 2023.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the Statement of
Compliance:
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Paragraph reference

1) Paragraph 17 (a)

it) Paragraph 17 (b)

i) Paragrapl 17 (c)

iv) Paragraph 17 (d)

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Description

At present there is no independent director on the Company's
Board of Directors as required under the clause (1) of Section 6 of
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

Under the sub-clause (i & ii) of clause 1 of Section 27 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the
Audit Committee shall have at least one independent divector who
shall preferably be the chairman of the committee. Since, there is no
Independent Director on the Board, this requirement is not
complied with.

Under the clause 1 of Section 28 of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Human Resource
and Remuneration Committee shall have at least one independent
director. Since, there is no Independent Director on the Board, this
requirement is not complied with.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company also holds the position
of Company Secretary.

Place: Lahore UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Date: December 29, 2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR2023103000w deEjq9G {Mr. Ibne Hassan)
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2023, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2023 and
of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auwditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1

Revenue recognition

Refer to the statement of profit or loss and
note 412 and 25 to the financial
statements,

The Company generates revenue from
sale of sugar and its by-products to both
local and export customers.

We identified recognition of revenue as a
key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an inherent
risk of misstatement to meet expectations
or largets.

Cr audit procedures to assess recognition of |

sales, amongst others, included the following;

» Obtained an understanding of the process
relating to recording of revenue.

e assessed the appropriateness of the
Company’s  accounting policies for
revenue recognition and compliance of |
those policies with applicable accounting
standards;

e compared, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded just before
and just after the financial year end date to
determine whether the revenue had been
recognized in the appropriate financial
period;

e performed scanning analytics to identify
any manual journal entries relating to sales
during the year which were considered to
be material or met other specific risk-based
criteria  for  inspecting  underlving
documentation;

« performed test of details over a sample of :
revenue transactions recorded during the
year with sale orders, sales invoices,
delivery Challan and other relevant
undertaking documents;

o reconciled the sales recorded and sales tax
paid thereto with the amounts reported in
sales tax returns; and

e assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
financial statements with respect to
revenue,
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Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
2 Borrowings and finance cost Our audit procedures, amongst others, |
included the following:
Refer notes 4,16, 8, 9, 12, 13 and 30 to the
tinancial statements, o assessed the intermal controls  over
recording the terms and conditions of |
The Company has obtained a range of | porrowings from financial institutions,
financing facilities from various financial including their classification as other
institutions with varying terms and tenure current or non-current and associated cost;
against collaterals of stocks and plant & | 4 shtained confirmations of borrowings as at
machinery. September 30, 2023 directly from the
financial institutions;
Further, compliance with debt covenants s re-calculated the mark-up recognized as
is a key requirement of these financing expense during the year to assess whether
ALEAN BRI, these were accounted for in accordance
with approved accounting standard as
applicable in Pakistan;

s assessed whether  installments  of |
loans/leases due or loans/leases maturing
within twelve months were classified as
current liabilities; and

e performed substantive procedures lo
verify the mark-up and principal
repayment during the year; and

e assessed the adequacy of Company's
compliance with loan covenants and
disclosures in financial statements,

3 Existence and valuation of stock-in-trade | Our audit procedures, amongst others,

Refer notes 4.7 and 21 to the financial

statements,

The stock-in-trade balances constitutes
16.66% of total assets of the Company. The
cost of finished goods is determined at
cost

including of proportions of

production overheads;

The Company’s policy is to value stock-in-
trade at lower of cost and net realizable

value, The stock-in-trade wvaluation

included the following:

assessed  the  appropriateness &

consistency  of Company’'s  accounting
policy for valuation of stock-in-trade and
compliance of the policy with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

obtained an understanding of internal
controls over valuation of stock-in-trade
and performed test of control on a sample
basis, to test their operating effectiveness;
performed substantive procedures over

purchases and consumptions;
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Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
involves management judgement in (e re-calculated the value of stock-in-trade by |
determining the appropriate costing basis. allocating the fixed and variable overheads

and reviewed the adequacy of costing
Additionally, entity holds its stock-in- methodology;
trade as a collateral against the financing |, performed  cut-off  procedures  and
on account of which there is persistent subsequent stock count to validate the
inherent risk. completeness and existence of closing
stock;
Thus, on account of the significance of | assessed reasonableness of management's
nckiieioadey iampextp: i e determination of net realizable value
calculation and involvement of significant (NRV) and the key estimates adopted and
management | judgement/estimation in cipaied, o sa;npll: B, Alie Gras ok |
application of the costing methodology; stock-in-trade with their respective net
we consider this to be a key audit matter. Shalisabls valines (NEVE
» assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to be in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.
4 Deferred Tax Our  audit procedures, amongst others, '
Refer to note 102 to the Financial | included the following:
Statements.

A deferred tax asset shall be recognized on
the amount of tax losses, if any, along with
the requirements of IAS5 12. However,
such recognition involves management
judgement regarding estimation of future
profits of the Company.

As at September 30, 2023, the Company
estimated that the unused
should not be recognized as sufficient

tax losses
taxable profits are not expected against
which the Company can use benefits
therefrom. Management is of the view
that recognition of deferred tax asset shall
be re-assessed on September 30, 2024,

obtained computation of current tax and

reconciled the amounts with relevant tax

correspondence and underlying
accounting records;

re-calculated the deferred tax and
evaluated the same in accordance with the
Income Tax  Ordinance, 2001  and
International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFR5);

obtained the financial projections from
management as approved by the Board of
Directors and reviewed management’s
estimates and assumptions in support of
the

achievability; and

projections for rationality and
assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to be in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the vear ended September 30, 2023, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applimbk-, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

COur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statermnents.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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s ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting pn]iq:i(rs used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenton in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b} the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance , 1980 {(XVIII of 1980)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is Mr. Ibne Hassan.

Place: Lahore UHY Hassan MNaeem & Co.
Date: December 29, 2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: AR202310300ghQOKiXYq
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Statement of Financial Position
As at September 30, 2023

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Mate B A2
Rupees Rupees
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capiral
120,000,000 (September 2022: 120,000,000) ordinary shares of 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000
Rs, 10 each
[ssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital ¥ 1, 177,063,000 1,177,063,000
Share premivm ] 290,741,640 290,741 640
Un-appropriated profis T 495117 955 5,963,048.710
Loan from sponsors - swseoired 7 3,635,214.057 3,635,214.057
TOTAL EQUITY 12,598,136,652 11,066,067,407
LIABILITIES
MNOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finances - recvred & - 393,529 554
Lease liability o 314238 148 2,412 260
Deferred liabilides 1 BE56,258,209 776,435,046
Deeferred income - Government grant 1
1,200,526,357 1,172,379,860
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short rerm borrowings - recred 12 B.433,218.407 9.997 (040,575
Current pordon of non-carrent liabilites 13 761,002,236 1,307,230,534
Trade and other payables 14 0,6064,0033,363 7.457,575,122
Martk-up accrued 5] 359201779 431,127,753
Provision for taxation 16 700,976,460 467,065,454
17,008,612,245 19,660,039,438
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 30,807,275,254 31,898,486,705

The annexed notes 1 to 4 form an integral part of these financial statements

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive
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s Y . 2023 2022
ASSETS Mot
Rupees Rupees
MNON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment i® 14,972450,176 15, 385,6013, 599
Long term deposies s 2E0 400 122 154,606,251
15,261,859,298 15,540,209,850
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 20 1,735.372 446 1,282 815,097
Stock-in-trade 21 5,131.402,509 7,959 386,723
Trade debts - mwsdered good 22 38435,118 18,486,272
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 23 6, 873,082,952 5,798,251,593
Tax refunds due from Government 701,721,744 H5hd 550 H25
Cash and bank balances 24 1,009 992 857 644,777,345
15,545,415,956 16,358,276,855
TOTAL ASSETS 30,807,275,254 31,898,486,705
Drirector
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the yvear ended Seprember 30, 2023

Sales -ner

Cost of sales

Gross profie
Administrative expenses
Distribution expenses
Other income

Profit from operations
Finance cost

Other expenses

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profic after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Moz
25

3

il

i

i

The annexed notes 1to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Chief Pinancial Officer

Chdet Executive

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023
Rupees

42290,087,513

(36,617,314,126)

222
Rupees

32,299.965,782

(28,536,941 441)

5,672,773,387

(738,008,233)

3,763,024,341

(683,726,881)

(445,264,526) (413,833,042)
741,015 69,346,782
4,736,541,643 2,734,811,200

(2,458,504 426)

(126,946,521

(1,677,105 219

(69,217 639}

2,149,090,296 038 488,342
(O30 4T3,275 [470,776,805)
1,509,217,017 517,111,537
12.32 4.40
Diirecoor
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2023

023 2022
Mot Rupeces Rupces
Profit after taxation 1,50%,217,017 517,711,537
Orther comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gain/ (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit liabiliey 10.1.2 29,267,035 (16,932,735
Relared tax impact {6,414, 807) 3,711,351
23,852,208 (13,221,384)
Total cornprehensive income for the year 1,532,069,245 504,490,153
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements
Drirccior

Chief Financial Oificer Chicl Executive
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2023

Profit betore tazation

Adinsineents for nog-cash aud ol e

Depreciation on properry, plane and equipment
Crainy on cligpwosal ol property, plant and equipiment
Finance cost

Prewisiom for seaff reorement beneties

Profir on saving accounrs

Crrant income

Wioerkers' Profit Partcipaton Fund

Operating profit before working capital changes
(Twereare) [ decriaee fr enrvent aerels;

Stores, spare pares and loose tools

sStock-in-trade

Advances, deposies, prepayiments amnd other receivalles
Trade debes - cawriderrd good

Tuerease /' (decrease) i curvemt Sobilities:
Trade and orher payables
Met Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Staff retrerment benefic paid

Taxes paid

Workers' Profit Paricipation Fund paid

Met cash gl:rlcrul!r:d friom upurating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

[neome receved from bank depaosics

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Long term finance paid - oo

Lease babilicies - net

!‘;I‘II)!‘I term b |1'|'|:-u.;i|'|}_?_.* wHef

Met cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Mot

1511
ix1.2
i
T
2%
I
1.2

1572

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

34

The annexed notes 1 o 44 form an integral pare of these financial statements

Chicl Financial Officer

Chief Executive

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 2022
Rupees Bupees
2,149,080, 2% SEE, 488,342

TOUL (0 MBS 211,550,562

(3,515,804,
2458504 826

(w3,083)
1.677.105.219

141,105,036 112,223 647
(33,395,263) (3,956,230
[#22,248) (10,459,335)
113,110,016 56,335,112
3,468,088,448 2,642,725 892
5,617,178,744 3,631,214,234

(452,557,349)

(158,162,913

2 R2T ORA 014 {1,698 442 TaH)
(1,074,831 389 {2,308 HO3,643)
14,643,154 (4.242,550)
1,315,238,330 {4,170,651,880)
(B50,206,063) 3,448 646,175
6,082,120,411 2,909,208,529
(2,530, 3440 5000 (1, 473,202,194)
(%987 B3E) (%, 460,484)
(459 538,999 [386,917,558)
(56,335,112 (50,006,904
(3,056,222,749) (2,120,093,150)
3,025,807 662 TRY, 115,379
-_'3[1”,{:-?-'2.5‘1‘?'] {2513.’55,5}52)
356,300,741 126,588
(134,802 871) 20,047 578
33,395,263 3,956,230
(54, 779,460) (233,205,186)
-_’HHH.445,]*JSJ {1,056,913,378)

{153,635,321)
{1,563,822,168)

(104,939, 345)
1,238.971,396

(2,605,902,684) (12,881,327)
365,215,512 543,028,866
545,275,190 2,246,324
910,490,702 545,275,190

Dhirictor
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

MNotes 1o the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2023

1 Corporate and general informeation
1.1  Reporting entity

Tandlanwala Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on Movember 01, 1988 a5 a Public Limired Company. The

ares of the Company are quoted on Pakisan Stock Exchange. The principal actvity of the Company is producton and sale of whire
crystalline sugar, ethanod and other related allied by-prodoces

The gecpraphical locatons and addresses of the Company's business units, incloding production faclities are as under
Head affice and registered office ; 66-1, Gulberg -1, Lahore
- Unie-l : kanpwand, Tehsil Tandbanwala, Diserice Paizalabad
- Unir-11 : Zamwand, Miran, [ndus Highway, Distrier Dees Ismail Khan
- LUlnic-1IT : Rehman Hajea, Shah Jamal Road, District Muzaffatgarh
2 Bagis of preparation

2.1 Swaememt of compliance
These financial suements have been prepared in gecordance with the sccounting and reporting seandards as applicable in Pakistan, The
accountng and reportng standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
Internatunal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued b the Internagonal Accounting Standards Board (LASE} as notfied under
the Companies Act, 20017,
- Islamic Financial Accounring Srandards (IFA%) issued by the Insrrre of
Compardes Act, 2007; and

arrered Accountants of Pakistan as nonfied under the

Prowision of and dicectives ssued wnder the Companzes Act, 2007
Where provisions of and direcrves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS or IFAS, the provision of and directives issued
under the Companses Act, 20017 have been followed.
2.2 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (PRR), which 1= the Company's functional currency, All financial information

presented in Rupecs has been rounded off to the nearcst of Rupee, unless otheraise stared.
2.3 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convennon unless otherase smted
24 Use of judgements and estimates

The preparadon of financial statements 0 conformity with approved accounong standards sequires management o make udgements,
cafimarcs and assumptions thar affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assers, liabilides, ineome and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumprions are bagsed on historical expersence and varicus other factors that are believed 1o be reasonable under
':'iTI"-I.I'I'IKr:I'I'II.'\.:H. :I'I'III :]'IL' TI::il.I.ItH I:IF U.']'ui!'l'l ﬁlfrl'l EI.".i: I'.h.l*i:i Fllr r||:|.kir|.g 1“('9:”“:“1 :I.I'II:IL'Ir rh':: I.'J.rr_l.'il'lg ".':III.I\.' IIF A%sets JII(] I'a.lhilili{:ﬁ rh.nlr wre et
readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these esnmates

The esamates and underying assumpanns are reviewed on an ongoang basis. Revisions o accountng estimates are recognized in the perod in
which esumares are revised if the revision affects only thar penod, or in the penod of the revision and furmre penods if the revision atfects
both current and futire perinds.

went was exercised in the

-].EIE: ADEHS “"I'II.TI.' .l.h!\.IJrIIF"iI\.JII:\ .I.I1I:|. esHakes are !-uli_

ificant o the |.".v:||:||]1:|:|:|'\.'.‘. Tnancial statements of where iuu:':!_.

appheation of accounting policies are as follows;

2.4.1 Employees' reticement benefits and other obligations
The f:nsmp.ln:r OpeTAtes AN .l]‘||'!lr|:ﬂ.'|;'\1,‘| un funded |:'r.|'.'|'.ir:|' scheme Dtl'\.'l,'Tiﬁ!_l. all permanenit waorkers who have i:unl]1|-;'|,l;d the minimumy |:|l.|..1|i:-:|.'ing
penod of service as defined under dw respective scheme, The calealanon of the benefic requires assumptions t be made of futore ontcemes,
the principal ones being in respect of an incresse in remuneraten and the discount rare used w convert fomre cash flows o current values.
The assumptinas wsed for the plan are derermined by an independent actuary on annual basis,

24.2 Taxation
The Company rkes into account the prevailing Income Tax Law and the decisions mken by Appellare Authorites, Whete, at the assessment
stape, the taxation authorites have adopted o different s trearment and the Company congiders that the most bkely outeome aall be in Favor
of the Company, the amounts are shown as contingent lizbabnes

2.4.3 Provigions and l,,'l,:nl:ini__‘rl.:ng::ii.:s
The Company reviews the status of all pending hogacons and cloms agamse the Company. In making a judgement and / or estimate relating
1o probability of outcome, the management considers laws, stamtory rules, regulasons and the advice of the kepal advisars for the esumated
financial outcome and where, based on management’ estimate, a provision s required, the same s seeosded in the financial sraremenrs. The
actual outcome of these lingatons and claims can affect the careving amounts of the liabilities recogpnized ae dee sratement of Hnancial position

dare,
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2.4.4 Estimated nseful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the setul [rves and ressdual values of property, plant and ecuipment on regular basis, Any change in estimates in future
vears might atfect the carrving amounts of the respective stems of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the
|_|l_'pru:‘i_ili-:|n |::||f'| 5

24.5 Inveriories

The Company revicws the invenongics for possithle imparment on an annual basis, Any change in csimares i fumre years might affect the

carrying ameunts of the respective items of inventories with a corresponding effece om the provision,

2.4.6 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) / loss allowances against trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables

31

41

ECLs are hased on the difference berween the contracmual cash fows due in aceordance with the eontract amd all the cash flows thar the
Company expects m recerve. The shortfall is then discounted ar an approximation @0 the asseds nnginal effectve interest rare.

The Company has clecred o measuee loss allvonnces or teade debes other than refunds due from *Goveramene of Pakistan” using [FRS 9
simplificd approach and has caloulated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs, The financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan continues o
b measored under TAS-3% due 10 the exemprion given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SR.O0 985 (1720019
dated 02 Seprember 2019, The Company has established 2 provision matmy dhar is based on the Company’s histerical credit [oss expericnee,
adjusted for forward-l soking factors specific o the debrors and the economic environment, When determining whether the credit risk of 2
financial asset has increased significantly since inioal recogninon and when estimanng BECLs, the Company considers reasonable and

supportable nformation that is relevant and avaslable without uncwe cose or effore, This includes both gquantitative and qualitative information

a5, Based on the Company's hististieal expernence and informmed credit assessment iﬁl']ul.llﬂg f-:lﬂ'.'dfd-]ll-.lkiﬂg informaniomn,

The mazimum period considered when estimating ECLs s the masimum contractual peried over swhich the Company is exposed to credit sk,
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amorized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the sssees,

The Company reviews the recoverabilicy of s trade delbus, deposits, advances and other recemvables o assess amount of loss allowances
required there against on an anowal basis,

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The aceownting policies and the metheds of computation adopted in the preparation of these financial stagements are 2ame as those applied in
the preparatinn of the financial starements for the year ended September M0, 2022 except for the adepion of new standands cffective as of
Clerrsher 01, 2022 as stated below in 3.1,

Change in significant accounting policy

IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard 1A5 17 Leases. It resulred in almose all leases being recogrized in the starement of financial
prosition, as the distinction between aperating and fnanee leases have now been eliminated for the Lessee, Under the new standard, an asset
and 4 lease liabalioy wo pay rentals are required o be recognized. The only exceptions are short term and o value leases,

Impact of Adoption

The Company bas adopeed 1FRS 16 and it has no maverial smpact on the Company's fnancial posidon as previously recognized leases were
already classified under finance lease arrangemenes.,

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as noafied under the Companies Act, 2007 and the amendments and

iﬂlL'rEJn'lﬂlil:-l'lh there o will be I.'|.j.\_'l:|i'|'l_' for :'l.('l:\cu.ll'llinig |1|.'r|.<|r|:: |:;-|,'ig1'|'|r'|ir'|g Vi1 M _]!.I-:': i J:".l'lu'_'n‘l. 20124:

Standards or Interpretation "Effective date
1Aas-1 - Amendmencs w LAS T "Mon-currene Liahilines with Covenanis” January 1, 2024
TAS-T & TFRS-T - Amendments te TAS 7 & [FRS 7 "Supplier Finance Ammangements” Janwary 1, 2034
1FRs-10 - Amendments e IFRS 15 "Lease lhability in a Sale & Leascback agreement™ January 1, 2024

Significant accounting policies

The sigmfwant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied oo all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme covenng all eligble emplovees completng the minimum qualifving period of service as
specified by the scheme. Annual provision is made on the basis of scnanal valoaten oo cover oblipatons under the scheme for all employees
elignhle to gratuiry benefits respective of the qualifying perind, The projected unit credit method vsed for the valwanon of the scheme 5 hased
i assumpoons staced inooooe 10,1

Past-servige costs are recngnized immediaely in profic and Inss acooun, unless the changes o the plan are condinonal on the employees
rernaining in service for 4 specified period of ame (the vesang period). In this case, the past service costs are amortized on a stoaight-line basis

over the vestung period.
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4.3

4.4

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

The Crmpany's ohligation in respect of the defined benefir plan is calowlared by estimarng the amount of funare benefir thar emplovees have
earned m the current and prior penods, discounting that amount, The caleulation of defined benefit obligation i performed annvally by 4
qualified actuary using the projeced unit eredie method.

Remeasurement of the defined henetie labalivy, swhich comprise acnearial gains and losses, 15 recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income, The Company determines the interest expense on the detined benefic liability for the pedod by applving the discount rate wsed o
meazure the defined henefit ohligation at the beginning of the annwal perind o the defined benefit lability, raking into account any changes in
the ner defined benefir ability dueing the period a5 a result of bemefit payments. Interest expense and other expenses related 1o the defined
benefit plan are recognized in profit and koss acoount,

Taxation

Income tax EXPENSE COMPses Current and deferred tax, Tt is rr._'Lx|Fr|ir.4;r_| in E;lr\-':ﬁl, ar koss aocount ERgept o the extent that it relates w0 items
recognized directly in vther comprehensive inceme, in which case it is recognized in equity

Current tax

Prowision of current tax is based on the rxable income for the vear determined in accordanee with the prevailing law for taxation of income,
The charge for current tax is caloulated wsing prevaihing tax rates or mx mtes expected w apply 1o the profic for the year if enacted atter taking
IO ACCol Tax l:!f-e'l.lll!.-\., pelares and EXEMPIHS, if any. The char Ee for carrent s also includes :Ll|::|.|h.|!ft1.r|.1.|:\., where considered MECESRATY, 10

prowisam For tix made in the previons years ansing from assessments framed durng the vear for such years. Under [/ over paid amounts of

current tax afe recofded a5 mx refundable / payable doe feom /oo the Government.

Dieferred tax

Dreferred tax is recognized using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences berween the carrving amounes of assers and
liabulities for financial reporong purposes and the amounes used for txagon purposes. The amount of deterred tax provided s based on the
L'x|1|.;|,'1-:|,| manner of realization or settlement of the CATTVINE ATWINE of asagrs and labilities, using the enacted or suhstantvely enacted raves of
tawation, [n this regard, the effecs on deferred taxation of the porton of income expected to be subject to final ax regime is adjusted in
accordance with the requitemnents of Accounting Technical Release = 27 of the Instmee of Chartered Accounianis of Pakisian.

Dreferred tax liphilides gre H(,'Lxlgﬂi:{,g‘(' for all mzable temporary differences and defersed ax assets are 'rl_wl:-gni{gu,l tor the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit shall be available aganst which the deducoble remporary differences, umsed tax Josses and tan eredits can be wilized
Dieferred tax assers and hiahthnes are measured ar the mx rares thar are expecred m apply i the penod when the asser s realized or the labiling
i settled, based on the e rates thar have been enacted or substantively enacted by the starement of financial posioon dare,

Dieferred tax 15 charged or credited in the smatement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged 0 comprehensme income

(518 |.1||.|:I:.. i \.'.'|'|'.1,’|"| [k

i iz i|'||:‘||.|-::||.|:i in rlIh{‘f {:l':-l'l'||'.hr|.'|'||.'|'|.\':n.¢ i:‘ul,'rll'l'll.' [1]3 -.‘:|.|l.|.ir:|.

Tjarah contracts

Leases whese a sipnificant porton of the risks and rewards of conership are retained by the lessor, are classified as operanng leases. Paviments
made under uperating leases are charged o the profic or loss account an g straight-line basis over the Jease / Taeah termy unless another
systemanc basis is representamve of the dme parcern of the Company’s benefir,

Trade and other payables

Liahilitics for trade and other payables are carried ar cose which s the fair value of the eonsideration o be pad in future for goods and services
received.

Property, plant and equipment

Presperty, plant and equipmenr include owned, right of use assets and capital sk in progress.

Chpmed

Property, plant and equipment, except frechold land are stated at cost less accumuolated depredation and any idenified impairment Joss,
Frechold land and capital work in progress are stated st cost less any idennfied imparment loss. Cost inclodes direct cost and relared
|:--.¢|‘||{'.'||,|>_ il'l[l:"l‘ﬂ'sl f'|1'||,| |‘:|||'r1'|m'ir'|3._[ (i1 :|'|c|:.|.-;_1i|'||z im|1|':-r| :hlnh f'|,|'||,| i [N ] Tl."lll.||'||,|.|.|:r'||,' pl,l‘l'l:l‘l.].‘\.l:' Eaxe=, f'|1'I|,"r |,|¢|,|:.|.n:‘r_1|'|g I,1':'||:|(‘ I,I1hl:':ll,l‘!"||h f'||'||,| 1'(]1:11{‘.-\.
and other costs direcdy attnbutable to the acquisition or construcaon incleding expenditures on material, labour and overheads directly
relating mo conserwction, erecton and installation of operanng fixed asses,

Subseyuent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or mecogmized a5 a separate asset, a5 appropriate, only when it is probable thar
furure eonnemic benefits associated with the item will flow oo the Company and the cost of the irem can be measured reliably. Major renewals
and improvements are capiralized. All other repair and mainienanee eosts are charged o the profic or loss accounn during the petod inowhich
they are incurred

Depreciation is charged on a systemanc basis over the useful life of the assers, on the reducing balance method, which reflects the paterns in
which the economic benefits are comsumed by the Company, ot the raes 5.|1;1_'|.Il§|_'|;|- in moge 18,1

Drepreciation on additons is charged from the month the asset is available fror wse while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the
asset b5 disposed off. Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lves of assers are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if

impact on depreciation is significant,
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The management of the Company the reviews carrving amounts of is assets and cash generatng uniss for possible impairment. 1t such
ingtication exises, the careying amoants of such assets are reviewed 0 assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverahle amount,
Where carrying values exceed the respecove recoverable amount, assets are wotten down o their recoverable amounts and the resuliing
impatrment loss is recognized in rthe 1:m|'ir af loss acoount. The recoverable amount is the higher oof an asser’s fair value less ensts o sell and
value in use, Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciaton charge is adjusted i the future periods to allocate the asset's revised
CATPYING amunt over irs estmared use ful life.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference berarcen the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the

aszel i5 recopnized 45 an income of expense in the profit of loss secount.

Right-af-use assets

Assers held under e

arrameements are initizlly reeorded ar the lower of present value of minimum lease paymens ander the lease
agreemients and the fair value of the leased assers, Dhepreciaton on leased assets is charged by applving reducing balance method ar the mates
wsed fror similar eowned assers, 5o as w depredare the assers over their esumared useful bves in view of cermainry of ownership of assers at end
of the lease term,

Cuapital work-in-progress

“apital work in progress is sated at cost less idenofied impairment loss, if any, Cost inclodes the expendioures o material, labowr, appropriate
Capital work it ted le=2 identified t boss, if any. Cost includes th o terial, labour,
diseedy arnnburable vverheads and includes horrowing cost in respect of qualifying assers as staced m aote 416, These onsrs are rransferred
operating fooed assers as and when the assets are available for their intended use.
Stores, spare parts and loose tools

sable stures and spare parts are valued st lower of weighted sverspe cost and net realizable value, while items considered obsolewe are carried

ar mil value. Irems in transic are valued ar cost eomprising invoice valoe plus other direcrly anmbaable charges paid theeenn up-to the halanee

sheet . Prowision is made in the financial starements for ohsolere and slow moving stores, spare and loose tonls based on management's

catimeare 25 a result of changees in usage parceen and phvsical form.

Stock-in-trade
These are valued ar the bower of the weighred average cost and ner eealizable value cxcepr for swock i oransit, which is valued ar cost
comprising invoice valuee and related expenses incurred thereon up wo the balance sheet dare,

Cost is determined as follows:

Raw material at lenwer of weighted sverage cost and net realizable value
Finsshed goods ar lonwer of weighted average cost and ner realizabsle value
By produces net realizable value

ess less estimared costs of completion and costs

Wer realizahle valoe s.i;_hn",il-il.:p. the estimated se ling price in the ordinary eourse of bus
necessary o be incurred in erder o make a sale

Fimancial instruments

481 Recognition and initial measurement

AN financaal assers and financial Habilies are idally recognized when the Company becomes o party @ the contraciual provisions of
the instruments.

A financial asser funless it is 3 reade debr withour a $1g|1;IEf:L|11 I"m:m('m;g COIMPOMIENT) (37 financial liabiliry is :||'|1Ii'.'|||:. mensured at Fair value
plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directdy atrmbutable to its acquisition or issue, A tmade debt withour a
slgm-.‘u::uu I"lf'.:mnng component 15 inatially mepsered at the transacrion price,

cnt

4.8.2 Classification and subsequent measure
Financial asscts
Cin initial recrgnition, a financial asset is classified as measured ar Amordzed cost, Fair Value Through Other Crmprehensive Income
(FVOLCT), Fair Walue Throwgh Profic or Loss (FYVTPL) amd in case of an equity instroment it is classified as FVORCT or FVTTPL,
Amortized cost
A financial asset is measuted ar omaortized coseif it meers both of the I]:-lluu-:-ng conditions anmd is o (|{".‘-ié_[l'l:'l|{"|,| = at FVITPL:
- it is hueled within a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets 1o collect contracooal cash flows; and
ira comrractual rerms pive rise on specified dares o cagh Qows that are solely payments of principal and interese an the
princrpal amoune rutscnding,
These assets are subseguently measwred ar amortized cost vsing the effective interest method, The amortized cost 55 reduced by
imparment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains [/ losses and impairment Insses are recognized i statement of profic or loss,

Any fmann of loass on ;Ecrmr:gnhinn i3 '.‘t‘cn-l.{"‘iacl:-ﬂ i starerment of Prru:'ﬂ of loss
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Financial assers measured ar amortzed cost comprize of cash and bank balances, long term deposics, made debrs, advance, deposins,
prepayments and other receivables.
Drebt instrument - FVOCI

A debr instrument is measured at FVOCTIE it meets hoth of the following conditions and is not designared as at FVTPL:
- it i5 hebd within 3 business model whose objective is achieved by both eollecting contractual cash tows and selling financial assets; and
. its comtractual terms give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount ourstanding
These assets are subsequently measured at fur value, Interest income caleulated using the effective interest methaod, foreign exchange
gaing and Iosses and impairment losses are recoenized in saement of peofic or loss. Other ner gaing and losses are recognized in OCL
Oin de-recogninen, pains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to statement of profic or loss. However, the Company has no
such instrument at the reporting dace,
Equity instrument - FVOCI
Ohn iminal recognition of an equity investment that s not held fur mading, the Company may irrevocably elect o present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair valoe in CCLL This electon 15 made on an imvestment-by-investment hasis,
These assets are subsequently measured ar faie value. Dividends are recopnized as income in statement of profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a rocovery of part of the cost of the ivestment. Ocher net gains and losses are recognized in OCT and these
imvestments are never reclassified o probic or loss. However, the Company has no such inscramen ar the reporting dare,
Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
All finaneral assers noe classified and measured 3t amormzed cost or FVYOCL a5 descnbed above, are measured a1 FVTPL.
Ot iminal recogrution, the Company may irrevocably desyenare a financial asset thar otherwise meets the requirements o be measured at
amosrtized cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, et gains and losses, including any interest or dividend meome, are recopnized in
statement of ]mﬂﬁ[ or loss, However, the Company bas no such instrument ar the repocting date,
Financial liabilitics
Financaal liabilines are classified and measueed ar amortzed eost or FYTPL. A financial labilire is classified as ar FVTRL of it 15 classified
a5 hebd-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on inttal recopaiton. Finaneial liabilines ar FVTPL are measored ar fair
value and net gains and [osses, incloding any interest expense, are recopnized in statement of profit or loss. Other financial lisbilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the ettective interest method, while the interest expense and toreiygn exchange gains and
levsses ane recognized in smcement of profit or loss, Any gain or loess en derecogmition is also recognized in statement of profic or loss,
The l:’fuml':,m:. % financial liahilites comprise trade and other payables, long term finances, lahilines agalst assets aubsiject o finance
lease, shore term |5-c|1'r|:l-.1'r|'|§_hr~_i. amvd accrued mark up,
Dierecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecopnizes a financial asser when the contracrual righes o the cash flows from the Gnancial asser expire, or it transters
the rights wo receve the contractual cash flows in a transactinn in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnership of the
financizl asset are transferred or in which the Company neither mansfers nor retains substantally all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain conteed of the financial asser.

The Company might enter into teansactions whereby it wansfers assers ecopgnized in its statement of financial positon, but retains
either all or substangally all of the risks and rewards of the ransferred assets, [n these cases, the teansferred assets are no derecognized

Financial liabilities

The Company derecopnizes a financial lahiliy when its conrractual obligations ate discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also
derecopnizes a financial liabiliey when its rerms are modified and the cash flows of the moditied liahiliy are subsrantally different, in
which caze a new finandal Lability based on the modified terms is recognized at far value. On derecognidon of a financial lability, the
difterence berween the carrving amount exdnguished and the consideragon paid (including any non-cash assets ansterred or Llabilities
assurned) 15 recognized in smoement of profit or loss,

Trade debis, deposits and other receivables

Trade debts are stated initially at the fair value, subsequent w initial recoprition, These are stated ar their amortized eost as reduced by
appropriste provision for impairment, known impaired receivables are written off, while recervables considered doubful are fully

|'|1| iy I-;||;_'|,| frar,
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The impairment for doubeful accounts = based on the Company’s assessment the eollectabiliey of eounterparty accounts, The Company
regulardy seviews s rrade debts thar remain oursmanding pase their applicable paymenr rerms and esmablishes allowance and privenal
write=-ufis ::1!. Lxlrl:.il:k'rirlg facts such a2 historcal ux|:|uﬁ4,"'.|_'g', credit -::|||;|'|i1'!.'. igre af the accounts receivable balances and current economie
condinons that may atfect customer's ability o pay.

Offserting of financial instruments

Financial assers and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of fnancial posigon only when the Company

has a legally enforceable dght to sct off the recognized amounts and intends o either seotle on a net basis or realize the asser and sende the
liahiliry simulranenusly.

Impaiement

Mon=Financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-tinancial assets, other than inventones and deferved rax assers are seviewed ar cach reporing date

o determiing whether there is any imdication of imparrment. I any such indication exists, then the asset™ recoverable amoant i estimated,

The recerverable amount of an asset or cazh generanng v i the grearer of it value in use and 1ts fair value kess cose m sell, In assessing valuge
in use, the esumated fumure cash flows are discounced o their present values using a pre-tax discount rate thar reflecs current market
assessments of the dme value of Imeney anil the risks ,-.|'u-|;:|:":|; 1o the asset or cash genering wnir,
Aan impairment loss is recopnized if the carrying amount of the assets or it cash generating woit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,
Impairment losses are recopnized in the statement of protic or loss. Impatrment losses recognized in respect of cash pencratng units are
allocaved to redece the carrying amounts of the assers in 3 unit on a poo e basis. Impairmene losses recognized in prior pecods are assessed
at each reporting date for any mdications that the loss has decreased or 0o "||1:|_!_§|:':r exises, An impairment Joas iz reversed if there has been a
change in the esumares used 1 determine the recoverable amount. An impaiement boss 15 reversed only o thar excent thar the asset’s carrying
amnount after the reversal does nor exceed the carrving amount dhar would have been determined, ner of depreciation and amortzation, if no
impairment loss had been recogmized,
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the puspose of saement of cash flows comprise cash in hand, renning iinance and cash ar banks,
Revenue recognition
According to the core prncple of IFRS 15, the Company recognizes revenue to depict the mranster of promised goods and services to
customers 0 an amaount thar reflects the considerarion oo which rhe Company expects 0 be entled in exchange for those goods and services,
The Company recognizes revenue in scoordance with thar core principle by applying the following steps:

- Identify the contract with a cuswomer;

- Identify the performance obhlgations in the contracy;

- Dewermine the wansacoon price;

- Allocare the transaction price to the performance chligations in the coneract;

- Recognize revenue when the enity sabishes a performance obligation.

Revenue s measwred ar the fair value of the consideration receved or receivable, and sepresents the amount receivahle for gonds supplied.

Revenue from the sale of _ql:-cul:h i% 'rl_tngnicu_d when the r_:ll'.."ll_'l;l X satisfies a '|_1|_'rﬁ|'rrr'|._1r|-;'|,' -:||}|ii._rh._1l_i-:|rl lat a '|_1|:-ir|| of Iim-:;] |:|:| |:T;|1'|$r'g'rn|'|5_{
promised goods o customer being when the goods sre invoiced and delivered to customers. This coteria of revenue recognition for its dming
and amount s consistent with the previously adopted accounting standard therefore, the management concludes that the adoption of IFRS 15
|:|<|u. st ]\;n‘l.' an i'.t‘lp;u;l: (K131 I||-:; Ii*.’!"liﬂ;._[ :|,|'||:| Aot iaf I|1L' TEVErbe r{'l_‘tl_l_{l'l1|i-:ll"l of 1|1.; f_:::-mp |r'|!.'.

Interest income:

[nterest income is recognized as 1t acerues under the effectve interest rate method.

Conract liabilities

% contract liability is the obligation of the Company o transfer goods or services o a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of considerason is due) from the customer. If 4 customer pays considerason before the Company transfers
gonds or services 1o the customer, a contract liability is recopnized when the pavment is made of the payment i3 due (whichever is earlier).
Coneract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company pertorms under the contract. I also includes retund liabilities arising out of
customers” rght to claim amounts from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery of performance obliganons and incentives
on target achievements. The Company's contract liabilites comprise advances from customers,

Foreign currency translations

position dare, All exchange differences are charged to the starernent of profic or loss
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Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are fecognized a3 an expense in the perod in which these are incurred excepe o the extent of borrowing costs that are
directhy arteiby

ble o the acquisition, consmucion or production of a qualifving asset, Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalized as pa of

the crst of the relevant asser.

Provisions

Provisions are recopnized when the Company has a present lepal or constructive chlipation as o result of past events, it is probable that an
outtlow of resources will be required o seile the obligaton and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made, Provisions afe reviewod at
each starement of financial posidon dare and adjusted oo reflect the currenr best esrimare

Related party transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length bagis except in cireumatances where, subject g0 the approval of

the Board of Directors, it is in the snterest of the Company o do 5o

Dividend

Dividend to Crdinary sharcholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulared prodir in the statement of changes in equity and as a lability

in the Companys Brancial statements in ehe vedar in which the dividends are appeoved by the Board of Directors o the Companys
i) ) f ) ]

shareholders as the case may be,

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Fasic EPS is caloulated by dividing the profic or loss arributable m ordinary sharcholders of the Company by weighted average number of

ardinary shares enestanding during the year

Diluged EPS 5 caleulared |:-_l.' :L||i|.|.ﬁ.li|'|5z basic EI'S with x\-.:i;_:é'.ll.d averimd number -:li'1|1'||:||'|.‘-'|.r!. shares that would be isswed o conversion of all

dilugve porenial osdinary shaves inmo ordinary shares and post-my effect of changes in profic or loss anribumble to ordinary shareholdess of

the Company that would resulr from conversion of all diludve potennal ordinary shares into ordinary shares,

Loan from sponsors

r.ll:l.l'l I.ﬂlm .‘hl'!lrl'\-':'f\ EM :I':'I.':'I.Iﬁll.":] I.EIT AN l'h.'f Tl.'l'hl'lii':lll R\.'Il':l:ﬂ.' -!"I Ill}ifl'("lrrlh r.':':lﬁ" |I"TH .-

Acermnrants of Pakistan ["ICAD), on 23 January 2006 which provides specific guidance on Directors loans thar are inesest free and

repayable at the discretion of the entit. Loans are acoounted for as per clause 3.3 of TR 32 which states thar " o fo g endity by fbe direrar

wdiclh fr agreed fo B ‘l'm.:.." i diieretion of b o

i.\.\'ulJ:'LI I'!-'l.' ||'l|.' ]I'Ihri.ll.l':l\.' 0l {..|1:Ir'!l\.'ﬂ:'L|

iy s amad e Sy St of Salddlily e B fa B recondid il ant fiet vadwe, This i ot ;.ut.-.*lrmm'.ﬁ' re-mainred

Government grants

Ciovernment grants selating to expodt support are rec -_!gn:.n_-ul when there is reasonable assueance that eanty will enmply with the conditions
arrached woir and geant will be recemved.

Operating profic

{_]|'s-r'r;|ri|1p |1'r||ﬁ':' 1% the resulr grnr'r;l'pr'd trovmy the |:;||'.'|ri|1uin|;'h |1'ri1'||'1|1:|.| reEvEenue ]:.r\-:||:||:|;:|1|5h activities of the |:_:III:II|1:LI1:\.' a% wrell ax ather income
relared fo :lpl"r:l'.:il'lg actvites, | :I|_'J-c':'.|r:|'|5; |1'rn|-ll excludes finanee coat, other CRPEnAes and income mEes

Segment reporting

Segment reporting i= based on the operatng (business) segments of the Company, An operating segment 15 a component of the Company thar
engripes 1 business actvites from which it Ay £Arn revenues and eur CXPLIVRE, 'irl-;'hsdilll_'_ reveme and EXPENSES that relate to transactons
with any of the Company™s other components. An operating segment’s operating resules are reviewed regalarly by the Chielf Executive o make
decisinns about sesoueces o be allocated o the segment and assess s performance, and foe which discrete financial informanon is available,
Segment results that are reported to the Chief Executive inclade irems directly avributable e a segment as well as those that are allocared cn a
reascnable hasis,

The business segpments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject o isks and rewards which differ from the risk and

reweards of other segments Segments reporeed are sugar, ethanol and wp gas & others.

23 22z
Share capital Rupees Rupees
Authurized share capital
1 20,006,000 (2022 120,000,060 crdinary shares of Rs 10 each 1, 20000 bul0, e 1,200,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
117,70, 300 (2022; 117,700,3000 woting ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid in cash 1,177 063,000 1,177,063, 000

Share premium

This reserve can be wrilized |1:\. the f:r:-l!|!||'.-ﬂ.|'|} -:lr'||:\. for the pufpines hI:'J-!:I'_"iI-lL'\t‘I it Bection §

and 8103} of the Companies Ace, 2007,

Loan from sponsors - insecured
Thiz represents interest free Inan amountng to Rs. 3,033 million (2022; Re. 3,635 million) ohained from the sponsors of the Company and is
repayable ar the discretion of the Company.
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Long weim finances - secured

Sindh Modaraba - Deeimeniane Mushansbae

o 1 h
h:ﬂ.li\."ll&l ]:Lulllh ':':- I.’J.ki:ﬂ'!ill .!l.l'l'i'l'lll'::ru':'l'l; |':|'W_I'|;r|'|‘1r|'n.l'
The Bank of Punjab - Tem fimanc
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited - Teow fivane
Allied Bank Limired

Commventional banks

Islamic banks

Tenure and basis of
principal repayment

Sancrioned
Limit (Ks.)

Mark-up as per
Agreement

S 6 Month KIBOR

plus 350 bps

) eyual instalments payable
ar the end of esch month
|_u_-g||1n|np from .I;j,lhl;j.l'!.' 4,

2019

ZAMLO00000 16 eqqual instalmenes payable 3 Momth KIBOR

at the end of each quarter  plus 200 bps
beginning from June 29,
2019 Instalments were

deferred from  January 01,

2020 g Diseemsber 31, 2030,

.:IIH:'.Illlll:_lf:l.:l.:l 111 I.'I.Il.l.l.l -.||.|ur'n'r|:.' 3 Monch EITHOR
instalrmenes  pavable ar the plus 250 bps
starc -:.'I' L'JITI'I

(]I.I.Ir'!l\.ll.'
beginning from  Seprember
2021

AN CE 14 un:gna'- instalmienrs l:-a:.alﬂu SANI%
at the emd of each guarter

I_'u.-gln ning Gmn .".[lnl K, 20121

IR SBP basec rate
|_'|J|.|:<_."| Manth
KIBOR + 300

IJ'IJ.‘\:

B equal guarterdy instalments
J":I".':I:T.\Il\." ar r|.1l\£ sbare II‘F each
quarter beginning from
Februaey 11, 2021
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2023 2022
MNate
“I.'I.l'lll.‘i:lﬁ RIIFEI’_‘!‘-
PRI | 4422 412]] 22112008 |
4422412 2, 112,05
8.2 444, 374987 1,036,474 991
83 GULDHHD O 1 A OO 000
a4 62,857,144 14,280
L) - 05 398 450
R67, 232,151 1,437,987,730
571,654,543 1,460,099,738
i3 {567,232, 131} [L,[H8,BE0, 588,
17 (4,422 412) {17,689, 50

- 393,529,554

Secu rit_\-'

Tide decuments of the assers are exclusively in the pame of Sindh
hlodaraba for the ennre tenor of the facilivg.

This loan iz secused by way of fiest pan passe hypothecation charge
over all present and furure moveable fixed assers and mortpage over
land and building and any other immovable property of the Company
(Ut 1, L1 & 100} for an amount of Bs 5200 mullion eath 25%, rn.lr!_ri:n
vver the Facility amount, respectively,

The lvan o also secured by ways of assigmument of all insurances ax oo
lss payes or assignee, lien on project accounts and  personal
guarantees of all Sponsors [/ Directors aloog widh all net worth
starements, The benders have subordinaned ohe Fepayment ol any debis
1M rlrl.drlL'L' !-:I.L'.rlili\.'.‘- iI'\'iIiIL'I.I !‘r'i‘lﬁ 1|1L SI\.'TI!('E? iII'II.I [..,ir\.".'tl.lr‘: |i“ |||L'

entire labilities of the ll"urn!'..u'.!. ovsards the svndicate are rqp.ud

This loan is secured by oway af ranking charge and st pan passu
charge of Ba 2000 million each, over all present and furute corfent
assets of the Company and Lst par passu charge of s 400 million
wver all present and fumre fived assets of Disdllery Unit =11 (Land,
building and Plane & machinery), respectvely and personal guarantee

uf all Directoss of the Company.

This subsidized loan is obiined under the qug 1erm ”l]}lﬂl,‘ll,]:_[ I'av.'i‘:i'._n
scheme provided by 3B o fi

e import of brand new machinery,
This lan s secured |:|:.' WAy wf par passu {'Iml*ge- over fixed assets
Ieseared at Unie-1I1 in MusafFaegash incloding land building, plane and

machinery of the € Znn1||.m'.' with a 2 204

o MATEIN (AMOUNTng o I

mitllicen) amd peesonal guarantecs of all Dircerors of e Company,

The Company has obtained boerrowing under Refimance Scheme for
payment af ";'k':lgmc & Salaries |1:.' the State Bank of Pakisean -:5|:3|""_, at
subsidized rare in six tranches on various dates. Fair value adjusmment
0%,

F B |:I||~a ] I;p:. per annum an |1ru,”|.:|i||ng marker rate and same

IIH..‘- .::II.'I\.'II r|.|-\_'u:1|.|n.t:| as di”;.'ﬂ.'ll.t'l.' hl."!".‘u'\_'LI:I .‘-I.IIE:-IIJ1II\_'IJ rate e,

has been recogrnized as Gowvernment geant in accordance with TAS 20
“Mcenunmng for Gevernment Crrants and Disclosure of Government
Asgistanee’ (see note 11 1o these unconsolidated Anancial seatements)
and 15 heing amorazed in the sentement of profit or loss, m bne with
the recognition of interest expense the geant is compensadng The
gl.':.llf i.# ‘.":ll'll.l.ill.rl n.'.:ll. .“'I.:I'l'i.'\'_'r (28] Fl.ll.t-l.llllﬂ_'llr 1|.F ‘.'L'rtail:l ‘.'I:ll'll.ljli.':lll.# an
defined in the SBP Befinance Scheme, The koan is secured by way of
I.‘-l IJ&H IJJ..‘-.‘-I.I Ciurre over r-u'ﬂ'.lJ HESELS .'II\'.'I'.IdiI'I_]’_ JHI'IIJ., .I:ll.llldi'u:llr

andd m:l{'hlnur:.' lexcared at Unag 10D, with 25% |11:|n.;in wver the facility
amount andd personal guaraniee of all Dircerors of the Company.




1oy

Lease liakiliy
Lease liabiling

Less: Curfent pogricg
Closing balance

@1 Opening balance

Add: Assers .'|n.|_l.|':n.1| ||||r|n|; the year
Less; Favments [/ agfjusrmens

Less: Corrent |'u,=r|i| ]

Closing balance

9.1.1  The prncipal payment ¢

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 22
Moy Rupees Rupees
wy 500,675,841 242 250,362
(189,437 643 (239 838,102
I, 258 148 2412260
242,250,362 433,253,707
415, O BiK] BT
(57,311,162 437,189,707
{ IF.\.‘-.[\?.-":.,'LZ]} (194,959 345)
503,675,841 242,250,362
13 (189,437 697 (230458, 1012
314,258,148 2 412,260

» under the lease apreements argrepate to Rs. 50057 million 2022: Rs 242,35 mallion] and are payable in moathly

imstallments under variows agreements, latest by Seprember 2026, The present values of minimum lease payments have been discounoed at

interess rate rmphicit in the kease, whech ranges from 21.37% 1o ZR49%, Er annum (2022 4% 1o 19505 per annumj. All lease agreements

catey fenewdl opgon af the end of lease period, however, the Company intends o exercise its opdon o putchase the leased assers upon

complenon of the respectve lease termes, There are no financial restricmons mposed by lessors and the taxes, repairs, replacements and

il'.: UTANCS cosds are IJ' FETIC I.""l ||Il\.' IL':'H.'L'.

“-2 II. rLL"C)"L'iJiHTJ: i I:II.":'\.".'L'I.:I. I:I.II.' el '::IF tll.ltl.ll.'\.' r|1i1'_i| e IJ\.h‘d. Pavmens £I1I.| r|:||.'ir prresent '\:'il'.lL'i At year I.'I:I.I:I. i" ax ﬁ)"(m’?‘:
2023
Future " Present
T Finance
minimum walue of furure
cost for fumere i
lease i rednirnm lease
perinds
rayments PAYMICIE
Particulars T |

Mt later than cme vear

Later than one vear and not later than five years

Particulars
.\’\il| J|1I BT ':I.1.l.|:| e VEeAr

Later than one vear and not later than five years

Flierr |"Erll'|‘|'l'|'.l af e deaier ary s _.'\l:-u':'a'-\T‘."'
r}l!il'l

Term of lease (vears)

i factor (Ve

Securiry deposts (%)

Dreferred Liabilities
Staff rerirerment henefits - Conataify
Deeferred taxaton

Sialt redirement henefits -Ghﬂui{}'

251,504,232 G2 G, 530 139 437 585
i AGR, GRO 5230,532 114,238,148
618,372,912 114,697,071 503,675,841
2rx2
Future - Present
e Finance A
mbrdimm value of future
cost for fumre i
lease : minimum lease
periods
PH.}:!I!I."I.'IT! FI:'-T.HEIIHG
------------------ Rupees - - - ----------o-
252970 243 13,141,141 30 8538, L0
2R 424 650 241 2}
255 816,162 13,565,800 242 250,362
2023 2022
2LV - 28400 LR L
-5 3-5
-3 10k - 30
2023 2022
.\- =l
Rupees Rupees
ot HEG, 248 209 TT A MG
Tz -

86,288,209

T 438,040

The latest actiarial valogtion of the f:illl'll."ilrl'\l'-": defined benefit p|:|.|'| wis cosducted ot '.";a.'!'-ln'|1'||:l|."r 30, 2023 l.I.‘-iII;'! |‘r|lin.1'||.'|.| Ulsit Credie Metlunl. Dietail

nf ohligaton for defined benefit plan is & follvas:

Present value of defined benefit oblarion
Liabality as at 3U 3eprember

1011 Movement in defined benefit obligatdon

Present value of defined benefis ll||i.i.|'::'|lilr1'l as ar (1 Oxewober

o 2023 2022
z Rupees Rupees
far Hiflo 288 200 T 438 040
HEG,IEE 209 T, 438,046
2023 202l
Mot Rupees Rupees

T A 38 MG

GaT 248,153
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Currene seevice cost for the year fo.r3 T2E806.24] 500561 423
Interedt eost for the vear pr 16,718,775 5286222
Benefits paid duning the vear [ HET R3] [ S0 AR
Actuarial f;:ninfl F loss on present value of defined henehs ||'|'-|'..|;.'||:|.<-|:|. for2 (292,267 035) 16932735
Present value oof defined benefie ohliranon as at 30 Seprember 286,288,200 T70, 438,046
2023 2022
11,12 Changes in actuarial gains [ty Rupees Rupees

i]lx-mng ACTIATIA in

Actuarial (loss) S gain during the year 20,267 1035 (16,932 T35
Charge o other L'-'-mln'l.".':q.'llu-.\.' income LR ) (20,267 035) 16,932,735
1 nr\c-l.'r-gm:-:::;l actuanal gans = =

113 [:Imrgu for the vear

Statement of Profit or Loss

Currene service cost 72,386,261 59,3401 423
Ineerest cost for the vear T TIRTTS 52 RG22 224
Met amaunt chargeable to profit or loss aceount 149,105,036 112,225,647
Actuarial loss/(gain) on defined benefie obligation (290, 267,055) 16,052,735
119,838 (MK 129,156,382
023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Rupecs Ruifecs Rupecs Rupees Rupees

Historical Informati

Present value of defined

: ARG, 2RE,209 T, 458,046 ST, 248,153 SR 406,782 414,605 841
benefit obligatons
Flaperheiice aflusimicn {29 26T 035) 16,932,735 [3966,347) 10,136,137 42,824,778
arising on plan babiliey boss
114 Assumptions used for valuation of defined benefit schemes 2023 022

TS
13.25%

Dizcoinr rate used fir inferest cnse

Discounr rare used For vear end abligaricn

Expecred rates of salary increase in fuoire 15.75% 12.25%
SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005
Expected mortalisy e = i = .
Setback 1 Year Setback 1 Year
Withdrawal Rares Aye-Based Age-Based
Kenrement age ) vears ) vears

10.1.5 Expected expense for next year

The expecred gramiry expense for the vear ending on Seprember 30, 2024 is esrimared ar Ba 17305 million.

10.L6 The Plan exposes the Company to scruanal risks such as:

H:l]sr!.r risks

The risk that the final sabary ar the tme of cessation of service is grearer than what is assumed, Since the benefir i= caleulaied on rhe final salany

{which will clissely reflect inflatien and other maceoeconomic facters), the benefit amount increases as salary increases,
Mnrl.ﬂ'if_l,-' S writhdrawal risks

There i= alsu a |'|r.-|.ﬂr||i:|l ni=k thar the acmal merialine / withdrawal rates are differeni.

.17 Granuty scheme entdes the members o ETATLITY WRON FesENation, erminataon, early retrement, retrenchment, death and dismissal. Ciratwey s

based on the last month's basic salary For each year of service,

118 The average duration of the defined benetit obligation is 4 years

HLLY Sensitivity analysis

IF the: sigmificane acruanal assumpoons used oo estimate the defined benefit obluaoon at the reportiog date, bad flocteansd by 100 bps wach all

odher vanables held constant, the i:|1]'|.'|i.'r Of presene value of the defimed henefic -::I&Ii,:nrir.-n as ar W) h:'pn'mhrr 2023 would have heen as

foallenars:

Gr:l.tuil}-

Impact on present value of defined
benefit obligation

Increase 1M bps  Decrease 100 bps

------------ Rupees - - - - - - oo oo - -
Discount rate movement 035,221 050 GO, 3H9 O0H
b:l'..-ir:\. |;rv:l-.\.'l|| Fake 502 310, T 533 937 403
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Althesgh the analysis does not take aceount of the full distobution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does preaide an approximation of

the sensitvity of the assumipricsns shown,

2 2023 Hzz
. Mo
10.2 Deferred taxation Rupees Rurpees

[heterred mx habality as at September 30, 2023 an axable temporary differences ansing
n respect exf:
- Aseeleraded faw: depreciation on operaiing e assety 2ABE05]1 AT 1,68, 130 230

I sied witels « gel 2 E21 T |_-|.,h"'.-'_-.\l:|1h"
Dheferred mx asset as at September 30, 2023 on deducrible emporary differences ansng
in respect of:

{ Tatncied dee St awid e avendid 22 |:3.-||'|5,'i.'-1_.lfl'l'!-': f'1._lf|':|ﬁ.3’.l.:-..5"_'.l

- Nearf retivement bemifier

- Prawiniont for Wonskar's Profit Farticipution Fad

10,21 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

As ae (] Chernbet

Recopnized in Statement of Profit or Logs:

- Aecelerated s depreciation on operating Axed assct
- Leased assers - nof

- Unused 1ax losses and mx credits

(257.003,581)
(32,40} 0005)

{151,537.413)

(10,08, 828

9 212 5R
AT 24083
(T BT 196

{242,334,327)
(24, 485 683
274,28

sraft retirement benefics (111,900,975 (3,79 097y
- Peovvision fog Wiorker's Peofin Paricipanon Fund [2LB05 07T [38.215)
{6,414,807) 3,711,351

anwl:xrd i:l Sr:lrt‘!rlrl'.r r||" L H‘I'f'r [.'::II.'I._.\TE.:Ilr"Hhi‘u'r’ II'II.'I':II:Ir’:

}i‘l.l Fr- ret in.'l:ll\.:lﬂ 1N'I1I.' "-Il 5

10,22 Asac 3 Scpr-:n'.h:r M3 defersed mx asset amowntng w0 Re, 12223 million (2022 Bs 20155

6A14,807

(3,711,351}

millinn) oo unused rax kosses and minimuwm mx

credic ufs 113 has noe been recogrized in these financial statements as sufficient mxable profies are not expected we be probahle againse which

the Company can wse benefits therefrom, Management s of the view that recogmition of deferred tas asset shall be re-assessed on 30

5-r_'|_:|’.l.'.|1 iber 224,

1 Deferred income - Government grant 2023 22
N Rupees Rupees
Deferred income - Government grant 83
Chpening Balance A22 248 11,281,533
Recemmized during the year & B
Girant amortized daring the vear 28 [A22 24H) (10,459,335)
Closng balance - B2, 248
Less: Curgent portion shown under cusrent liabilities - (B22 248
12 Short term boreowings « secred
Interest rate 2023 22
[ [ [ it e Rupees Rupees
Muenb-sgh Sorseal Dervowiags from casssnon’ banss-recars
Cash finance 18,51 - 2T 2 126,216,252 4861,26.414
Bunning finance 18.76 - 25 86 O 02,155 an a2 155

Exporr re-finance/FAPC

5

10/ 1278 = 2567

]

303,612 002

B,433,218 407

0,007 040,575

121 The Company has availed shorr term borrowing fagilities from vanows commercial banks under mark-up armngements having aggrepate sanctnmed
limits of Rs 13,773 malion {2022 Ks. 13775 million). These facilinies are seconed theongh pledge of stock-in-trade, Gen on debtors, charge over the
present and futuee cureent and fixed asses, lien on export docaments and personal guarantess of the sponsoring Directoss as well as subordination of

Inan from Directors. The outstanding bormswing pledged agamst stock-in-trade amoant o Bs, 4,751 million, (2022 Re 6,014.3 million).
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

13

14

14.1

15

16

Current portion of non-current labilities

Long term finances - Canentinna S
Lowng term binances - Inbwwe dw
Lease ]i;-il.\i‘iilg.

Dreterred grant

Trade and other payables

Trade and other credirors - smnemred
Credirors for capiral expendimare - e
Adlvances from customers - Laga!
Retentinn money payable

Federal Excise Dury and Sales Tas payable
[come Tax deducred ar sounce
Withhaolding Sales Tax pavable

Workers' Profir Farticipation Fund
Acerued labilites

COither lahilines

Mase

)

Mase

147

2023 2022
Rupecs Rupees
567,232,131 1,004, Ha0, 588
4422412 17,689, 5%,
189,437 693 239,838 102
- B22,248
Ti1, 002,236 1,507,230,534
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
617,614,290 196,962,863
542 855 281 1,855,956,214
373,157 a8 3,794, 250,354
11,127,122 10,324,620
383 290,350 }22,315,027
136,902 487 L0 942,977

113,110,016
115,291,276
052,681 433

4,103,782
56,333,112
137,339,859
879,014,710

i, 664,033,363

7,457,575,122

This includes Bs 153613 million received feom Trading Corporation of Pakistan ("TCP") against sale of sugar, In the vear 2009 the

Fond Directorate of the Government, in conjunction with the law entorcement agencies lifted and sold TCP sugar seocks, despite

protest from the Company.

This lifting of the sugar stocks by Government constituted an event of force majenre under clavse 12 of werms of enders and the

tenders would, theretrre, be discharged due o frustration nof the contract. Accordingly, the management, based nn the legal opinion, s

of the view that the Company after the event of force majenre is not requised o make delivery of sugar 1o TCP and oo penalties o

incidental charges will anse on non-performance of the contrace. Farther, the Company agreed to sertle the remaining amaount o TCP

subject to reconciliation of Uity IF:ITI.'EJ[!.' lifted by TCP which to-date 45 l‘(::!l[lj[’._!.-‘_.

Workers" Profit Participation Fund
Balance as at U1 Chetober

Prowision for the vear

Mark-up on Workers' Peofit Parocipation Fund

Payments made during the year

Mark-up acerued
Mark-uh o berromings frow conrestional bawir!
Loy tertn Joans - srsd

Shorr term borrowings - secared

Provision for taxation

Balance ar beginning of the year
Add: Prowision for the year

Less: Adjustments
Balance ar the end of the vear

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Mae

It

Nase

2023
Rupees
26,335,112
1311016

2022
Rupees
S0, e

50,355,112

{56,355,112) {501 S
113,110,016 56,355,112
2023 022
Rupees Rupees
45,712 595 63,161 382
313,379,184 363,065,871
359,291,779 431,127,753
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
467 65 454 321,502 451
00,976 460 467,065,454
1,258,041,914 788,927,935
(467,065, 454) (321 K62 481}
700,976,460 467,065,454
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Contingencics and commitments

17.1
17.11

17.1.2

17.1.3

17.14

17.1.5

17.1.6

Contingeteies

The Government of Pusjab under the powers conferred through the Punjab Excise Act, 1914 levied a charge of Re 2 per
litre on manufacring of spidt (Ethanol) on 03 July 20012, The management filed Writ Peddons no. 18347/20012 and
33334/2014 against the abewve levy in the Honorable Labore High Coure ("the Court"), The Court, vide order dated 15
July 2016, dismissed the afnrementioned Wit Petitions.

Thereafter, the Company filed an Intea Court Appeal Mo, 121972016, of the same dile, agrainst the aforementioned order
of the Court, This Intm Court Appeal was dismissed vide order dated 10 Oeraber 217 on the technical geound of
maintainability, The Court stated in the aforementioned order that the remedy of Intra Court Appeal did not lic against
the Oreder dated 13 July 2006, and, therefore, dismissed the appeal. However, an | Innorable Division Bench of the Court
vide Oheder dared 10 Awguse 2006, directed the Company along with other petitioners tn deposic the excise duty payable
under the im]mgnm noification with the Deputy Regserar (Judicial), Lahore High Court, and restrained the respondents
from collecting the same from the Company, The same inrerim order holds ehe field till date. Till date the Company has
deposited Rs, 291 million with the Depury Registrar (Judicial), Lahore High Court which is disclosed in noge 23 to the
financial starements,

The Company then filed CPLA N, 4330/ 2017 against the Order dared 10 October 2017, The Honorable Supreme Court
of Pakistan has st aside the Oheder dared 10 October 2007, and remanded the matter back to the Court for decision on
merits vide order daced 20 November 2017, However, no date for hearing has been fised dll date against the above
mentinned nrder,

Based on the opinion of the Company's legal counsel, the management is confident of favorable ourcome regarding chis
case, hence, no provision has been recognized in these financial statements.

The learned DCIR wvide order dared 04-05-2023 passed an order for recovery of advance mx amoundng o Rs,
026,739/ - Taxpayer being aggrieved with the order filled an appeal before CIR (A). The appeal has been heard on 19
12-2023 and decision is awaited. In this regards, a favourable outecme 15 expected

Markup cn shore & leng werm loans has been disallowed againse the local sales and allocared o diseillery unie. Resuleandy
loss of the company has been deceeased by Rs, 39,731,736, Taspayer being ageneved filed an appeal before CIR Appeals.
The same has heen decided in favour of the department. Further, the topayer being aggrieved bas filed Appeal before
ATIR, which was heard on (8-04-2021 and passed order having I'TA oo 2491 & Z132/LB,/2003 dared 1-06-2021 by
directing the department to re-assess the case. Re-assessment proceedings are awnited. The Company’s Management
expeces favourable outeome due to which no provision has been vecorded in these finaneial statements.

Tax Credie u/s 03B amounting o Bs 2505306/ on plant and machinery has been disallowed by the learned DCIR
Taspayer being agprieved filed an appeal before CIR Appeals, The same has decided in favour of the rspaver. Further,
the department has filed Appeal betore ATIR, which was heard on 08-(4-2021 and passed order having ITA no, 2491 &
2132/1LB/ 2013 daeed 1-06-2021 whereby the dedsion of CIR (A} was upheld by ATIR. Being aggrieved with the decision
of ATIR, company filed 2 weit petition having number WP 68259/2019 and heasing of the same is pending for lsung
before Honousable Lahere High Court. Management is confident of a favenrable cuteome in this regard,

The Learned DCIR started proceedings u/s 177 and made additdons under vardous heads amounting o Bs. 664,275,802/ -
theough order u/s 1221} dated 12-12-2017, Resultandy loss of the Company has been decreased by the same amount.
The taxpayer filed an appeal before CIR (A) apainst the said addidons which was decided vide order no. 18-AV dared (09

{12-2021. The same has been decided in the favor of deparrment, Furthermore, the taxpayer being apgrieved has filed
Appeal betore ATIR on 07-04-2021, Hearing of the same is stll pending, and favourable cutcome is expecred.

The learned DOCIR initated proceedangs u/s l]:‘i].’“%l;]’:l of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 xﬁ'hrn:h:.' he imposed rx::ua|t§.' of Rs.
156,660,698/ - ufs 33 on account of late fling of sales ax returns along with defaule surcharge of Rs, 28768046/~ u/s
341 vide order bearing new CNo, LTOVEnf-16/8T/2601)/19465 dared 12-05-2022. The RF being aggrieved has filed an
.'Ij‘lpi.‘..'l] betore CIR (A) on 14-06-2022 against the said order. The CIR (A) confirmed the order of DCIR, Being agpneved,
the company filed an appeal betore honourble ATIR

The honourable ATTR in STA Noo 1803/ LB /2022 deleted the penalty of Bs 156,660,695 whereas, eonfirmed the default
surcharges of Rs, 28,768,046, - Being agenieved with order of ATIR, the CTR LT (Legal) filed an appeal having reference
na, G0369,/2023 and the same has not been fixed for hearing. Management is confident af a favourable outcome in this
regard,
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17.1.8

17.1.9

17.L.10

17.1.11

17.1.12

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

The learned DCIR inidared proceedings uds 8(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 where he disallowed input rax of Ks
'I-'|._."iH-1,_.":.--1.-" ont aecount of claim in violation of sectdon 8 vide order |::u':rr||::|g o, Mo T }l,-'};'l'.-"}-:.}l;f'_ 1.(:-.."1-JRH.‘I..."2['IZ|!'.-"
2021/5273 daged 1500-2021, The RP filed an appeal before CIR (A) which was beard on 16-02-2022 in which the learned
CIRK (A) has set aside the procecding with the direction that re-asscssment of casc has o be made vide order bearing o,
090 dared 04032022,

The learned IR issued reminder notice dared 040032022 in response o which BP duly replied . But Unformnarely
without considering the reply |, the learned DHCIR dssued order w/s 11{2) in which learned IDCIR again disallowed input tax
amounting to Rs. 14,384,754/~ Being aggrieved with sad order RP filed an appeal before CIR{A). The same has been
heard and favourable outcome is expecred.

The Learned DMCIR issued Show cause notce (SCN) dated 21-05-2021 wherein DCIR has confronted the difference in
sales and bank credits amwunting oo Ra 24,806 408 432 /-

The said SCN was challenged in High Court who was granted sty in ICA Nodtad40/ 202 dated 22-06-2021, However,
the learned [DCIR issued order which was served on 22-06-2021.

Hewwever, DCIR was not aware of stay issued order in which the additions made of Rs 22,897,630,561 /- and created
demand of R 6,860,328 513/~ The said demand has been stayed by High Court (HC) vide order dated 04-11-2021 in the
C.M nn 4 /2021,

The taxpayet filed an appeal betore CIR (A) against the said demand in which CTR {A) stated thar the decision of CIR (A)
remaing reliane on final decision of High court vide arder barcode o, POOODOT 15208904 dated 23-12-2021, Furthermore;
the taxpayer being aggrieved has filed Appeal before Appellate Tobunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the sad order of
Leaened CIR {A) on 31-01-2022 which is pending adjudication. The intra-eourt appeal stands withdeawn as pee order of
the Honorable Lahore High Court dated 1%-10-2023.The main appeal  before ATIR is heard and favorable outcome is
expected.

The learned DHCIR inidaved proceedings ufs 353(53) and 3301) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 where he imposed penalty of Rs,
1,257,357/ on account of late  filing of sales tax return wvide order bearing oo, CNGLTL/ST/ESC

o/ Min/ Tandhanwala /2021 /5053 dated (9-09-2021, The RP filed an appeal before CIR (A} which was heard on 15-10-
2021 in which the learned CIR (A} confirmed the order of DCIR vide order |'.h|.':'|.|'i.|'lng no, 08/ AV daced 04-03-2022. The
RP being aggrieved filed an appeal before Honorable ATTR on 01-04-2022, which 15 pending for hearing,

The kearned DCIR initiated peoceedings u/s 8(1) of the sales Tax Act, 1990 where he disallowed input tax of Rs
30,714,395 /- on account of clom in vielaton of sectton B along with penalty of Rs 1,533,720/ u/s 33 vide order bearing
no CMNoLTO/Enf-16/5T 82/ 18217 dated 20004-2022. The RP filed an appeal before CIR (A) which was heard on 06-
(6-2022 in which the learned CIR (A} has zet aside the proceeding with the direction that re-assessment of case has o be
miade vide order beanng no 107 AV dared 10-06-2022,

The learned DCIR finalized the re-assessment proceedings vide order having reference No. LTO /Unic-27 /5T /8(1)/582
dated 15.06.2023 in which DCIR again dizallowed input tax amountng oo Re 24,680,164/ - Being aggneved with said
order RP filed an appeal before CIR(A). The CIR (A) made the decizien in favor of RP regarding allowance of inpur tax
claim of Rs. 18,928,876/~ against the acquisition of Pipes of Iron &Fitings while confirmed the learned DCIR decision
regarding the remaining input tax claim of Rs, 53,731,268/ -, The company as well as the tax advisor being confident in
favourable outcome is in process of filing appeal before ATIR .

The learned CHR finalized the proceedings by making additon of Rs 310,704,739 a0 account of Expaore Rebare and BMR
tax credic impact of the same 1= Rs 123,703,716/ -, Being aggrieved with the order, the @y payer filed an appeal before CIR
[A). The commissioner {(Appeals) vide order dared 05-01-2021 deleted the addidon made by the officer inland revenue
(MR}, The department being agereved wich the nrder of CIR (A} filed an appeal before ATIR bue the same has not been
fiwed for heanng, Management is confident of a favourable ourcome inthis regard.

The Company has filed & Writ Pettion No, 07781,/2022 in the Labore High Court to challenge the validity of Super Tax
impnsed by the FBR under Sectinn 40 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Honourable Crurt has granted interum
relief to the Company o file Income Tax Remurn for the Tax Year 2022 excluding the wax under secton 4C of the
Oirdinance; subject w deposic of post dated cheques of the differenoal amount hable to be deposited under section 4.
However, i has been dircered on the request of the Petooner thar the cheques shall be encashed on the direction of the
ot or subject (8] decision in this amd connected peiticns,
The zaid interim felief was El:fl|.|-u|'|.g\_'-:| ]1} the Comimigssioner Inland Revenue wide C.P 3508-1/2022 helfove ."".ugum
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCT1¥), The SCI? disposed off che civil petinion, directing the taxpayer to depogit 0% of Super
Tax Liability under protest after adjustment of refunds (Gf any)

The writ petition was later fixed for hearing before Honourable Lahore High Court whom vide its judgement date June
272023 allowed the Wrir peddon pardally o the extent thar the First Provise o Division ITB of Parc-l of the First
Schedule o the Oedinance was declared o be discriminarory; bence, ultra-vires oo the oonstitation whereas rese of prayer
Le., dmpositionglevy of Super tax retrospectively on the docmine of past & closed transactions were  dismissed.
|:'.n:::l|-||'_l\I ;|:_1;=_l|:r||_'1.'{'-;_| with the above -unra_||_'rI cross Tntra Court .-".r\p:::_ﬂ hefore Honourable Lahore J“Hh court 1% filed |'.|:.' hath

parties Le. Company and FBR which is pending for heanng,
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The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/fs 11{1),/26(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 190 where he imposced the penalty of B
50 238,011/ ufs 33 on account of tae (iling of sabes mx rerns along with defael surcharge of Re 11,537,956/ - u/s
341) vide order bearing no. 3T/14 dated Z7-07-20235. The RP being aggricved has filed an appeal before CIR (A) on 27
I7-2025 aprainst the said order. The CIR (A) confirmed the demand ercated by the DCIR vide order no 22-A0\Y dated 25
92023, Being agepricved with the order of CIR (A, the BP filed an appeal belore the honorable ATIR, which is pending
for adjudication. Based on max advisor's opinion, Company’s Management expees a favourable oweome of the maner,
The learned DCIR initiated proceedings ufs 11(2) & 11{4A) of the Sales Tax Act, 19 on acoount of non payment of
sales tax payable amounting o Rs ZRZ 148/ and sales vx withheld payable amounting w Ks 4428921/ amd also
imprnace] penalty and defanl surcharge ufs 33(5) & 34 respectively on iL The RP being aggricved with the decision of the
IMIR filed an appeal belore CIR(A) which is pending for hearing. Based on e sdvisor's opinion, Company's
Management expects a favourable outcome of the mater.

17.2 Commitments

17T.2.1

17.22

17.23

Commmitments in respect of impons conractod bt oot incorred ar pear end amoonted o approximatcly Rs Nil (2022 Rs
Mil).

The Company has given a bank guarantee with V0% cash margin of Ra 2 million (2022: Rs 2 million) w the Fxcise and
Tazation Departmnent bor the export of Kihanol in selatbon v contingency 28 discossed nonore 1711,

The Company has corain ljarah Galives which have been classified as operating lease in the financial statements as
required by the Islamic Financial Accountng Sundaed 2 (1IFAS 2} ssocd by the Insuooe of Charered - Aceountanis

of Pakistan. The amwount of ljarah rentals pasd dering the year has been charged as an expense during the year.
The eommitmems of fwure payments under operating ||::].M:i.-"|.i:11:.l}| financing and finance lease contracts amd the period

i which these payments will become due anc as Tollows:

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Mo kaver than onc year 4 198,215
Later than one year amd not later than live pears
- 4,198,215
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 2022
Capital work-in-progress Rupees Rupees
Cheemted
il weakes ANGIA 822 3”.'&“5,333
Mant and machinery 3,006,740 3,106,740
Crthers 1, 7R2 VB4 1,782 YE4
55,495,546 55,495 546
Througheut the vear, there has heen no acoviey or movemnent in the Capiial Work in Progress (CWTF) sccount
Nate 2023 022
Long term deposits Rupees Rupees
Leposits againse leased assers 257719230 123, 200 WE
(ithers i 31,689,863 31,375,863
2ED, 409,122 154,606,251
Thess mainly comiprise of secarty margins of Rs, 212 million (2022 Rs, 50 million) deposited againgt long term finaocing facilities,
2023 2z
Stores, spare parts and loose tools Rupees Rupees
Stores and spare parts 1,661,364, B8 1249337570
{1l and lubsicants 54007 534 BT
1,735,372,446 1,262, 815,097
2023 022
Stock-in-trade Rupees Rupees
Raw materals 1,5 44, TTR 2 200,439 BN
Finished goneds B2 03 5, D T2
5,131,402,809 7,959,386,723

Trade debs - considered pood

Thess include amount due from Lotte Akhrar Beverages (Pvt) Limited, an sssociated company, against the sale of Top Gas amounting
to Bs. 0.7 million (2022 Re 4.30 million) in the normal course of business and is over due by less than 180 dayvs. Maximum aggregare
outstanding halance at any time dunng the vear amounts twe Bs. 11,336,278 (2022 Rs. 6,107,261).

Nate 2023 2022
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables Rupees Rupees
Advances o sugar cane growers - s, cowsidera gosd LBTA,6T5,230 LB G107
Ay ANCES B 5\.|.||1E:-|ix'r:\ :||'||| CONrRCErS rr.-.'.-e.-.n.'r.-.l'. .-.':-.'.-.l'.-'r.'r."r.-f._';-:-.n\" 211 -:'-_m 2_2| | _'.:'|'.:' 1_;\‘!.;':1 _-'_-':J___'| 3
Medvances o staft - wnervred, sl posd:
- AgAlnst CXpenscs 8,710,241 3,365,132
- against salaries M2 2523576 30T9.819
Advances againse leter of eredit 231 B0 OB, 50 35,0641 32
Pre-payments 27,533,062 12,931,154
[mland export subsidy 234 133,167,750 133,187,750
Expart support on sugar 35 ARG A1010 SR 401 010
[eposis wuth the Depury Regisirar (Judical}, Labose High Courn 201 ZH0 Bk 2491 2N e
hher receivables 234 JO0, T4 THT 23 (R 510
£,873,082,982 5,798,251,593

This represents unsecured interest free sdvances o contractons and suppliers for normal repair and maintenance

Thas includes ameount receivable from executives of the Company, amountng to Bs. 088 million (2022: Rs. 083 millicn) respectively.

Thas includes advances apainst lertes of credit amountng o Ba 36,08 million,

This represents inland export -:|||:|5.i||:| provided o exporters of sugar in the year 2003 and 2004 ar the rare of B, 175 and Ra, 100 per
gof sugar exported thoough SRO 7 200 2-E-11 (Vol-IV) dated Seprember 30, 2013

Thas represents export support an sugar prowided to exporters during the finaneial year 2007-18 with inland freight support amewnting

to Bs. 553 mllinn ar Bs 107 per kg pursuane oo Letrer Moo B Noe 702200 2-Explll issoed by the Ministry of Commerce under
directions of Government of Pakistan dated Oerober 03, 2017,

This includes inrerese free loan recetvable From superor Texule Mills Limited, an associated company, amounting to Bz, 1002 million
(2022: Rs. 30 milkiom) respectvely. The maximom aggregate amount outstanding at any ame during che year amounes o Re 1002
muillien (2022: Rs. 30 million).
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

M Cash and bank balances i
Cashoin hamd
ash ar bank - .'-'-:a-.".'-'.'".'r-r._'|
- CITRITE NIRET
- SN e 20

24.1 The balances in saving acorints carey mark-up ranging from 18% w0 22.5% per anoum (2022 1W0% o 13.2% per annum),

Moty
25 Sales - mef

s

Surar

Erhanal

Tirp Gras & wthers

Etrs:
Saggrar 252

Ethanal

Leri

Sales mx

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
2,484,362 14,773,116
108,136,947 G768 1187
BT 548 22323042
1,007, 508,495 630,004,229
1,009, 992,357 644,777,345
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

31,674,780,348

24,830,130, 367

L% 504, 50, 231 414,610
376,742 685 72090, 273
32,261,027,83% 25,434,241,256

1,545,033,.290)

13,273,074,257

10,560,507 465

14,818,107,547 10,564,507, 469
47,009,135, 386 35,904, 748,725
{(4,809,047,873) (3,694,782,943)
42,2%0,087,513 32,200 965, T2

25.1 These include sale o Loste Akhtae Beverages (Pue) Limited, an associated company, of Top Gas amounting o Re 435 million (2022 Rs,

3488 pullicn).

252 _|_'.|'|:r.|1|: the year SErAr was L"(F\II'.'rl_':.: as per the queta allecared by SBE There was no eXpOrt af sugmr in the Prl_".'ill'.l_\ FERT.

253 The amount of Rs. 3.04 billion included in eonteace liabilities ar Seprenher 50, 2022 has been tecognized as revenue in 2023 (2022: Rs. 6960

millicon).

M
26 Cost of sales

Raw material consumed

Salanes, wages and other benefits 2a.dl
Dhepreciation 811
Stores and spare parts consurmed

Fuel and power

Repair and maintenance

Vehicle running expenses

Inswrance

ljarzh reneals

Chther expenses

At {pewing shavk
Rawr manenal

- Finished greds

Leisz Claning stavk:
- Raw marerial 2

- Finished grods 2t

26.1 Salaries, wapges and other benefits include Bs. 10283 million (2022 Rs. 1542 million) in respect of saff redrement benefies,

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

30,514,681 442 27,1005 81, B
918,347,529 TI034T TS
0,347 588 TAT 665, TTO
i, BOE, 900 837 308552
240,524, 108 235,133,867
3,355,155 372634005
45.956,67 5 33 8 600
71,146,433 46,415,008
4,198,215 35,510,076
33,504,309 51,388,577
33,789, 330,212 30,235,384, 200

2,260,430 #21
5 60 D U2

1,734, 154,556
4,322,789 399

1,748, 716,935 36,496,328,164
{1,840, 460,7785) (2,260 439 K21
£3.190,942,031) (5,608 946 902
36,617,314,126 28,536,041 441




TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Note . | 15] 2022
17 Administrative expenses Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wapes and other benetits 271 435.574,115 375247789
Bent, rates and taoes 4462741 9,260,658
Dhepreciation AR 19752497 23 B84 7B
Ltilities expenses 4084734 3470520
Printing and statonery 1713975 16,698,125
[nswrance 4,063,909 2875587
Postage, telephone and relegrams 10,571,082 9,808 301
Repair and maintenance 7468370 3,802 706
Travelling and conveyance 136,300,100 128 870,940
Fubscription, books and penndicals 9. B03 130 12,1494 233
Lepal and professional charpes 19430557 29,000,378
Auditor's remuneranon 272 G, 195, 200 4355, 300
Enterminment 21,537 448 19031 955
Chther expenses AT 657069 40033, 270
THE 08,233 083,726,881
27.1 Salanies, wages and other benefirs include B, 40.2 millinn (2022 Rs. @08 million) in respect of staft reorement henefics,
23 2022
172 Auditor's remuneration Rupees Rupees
Audir foe A BN 2050, 100
Half vearly review 1,385 200 1,395 200
15,195,200 4,355,500
Alate 2023 2022
28 Diisuribution expenses Rupees Bupees
Handling and distobution 193,296,736 104,151,574
Transpoartation 235,856,017 248 TT0, 734
Fugrar sracking charges 40,902,416 47,655,221
Crhers R 9145337 13019513
465,264,526 413,833,042

8.1 This includes salanes paid o Excise Department staft present at the Company's premises 1o moaitor the diseributon of Ethanol.

n o | 1K) 2022
L i
2 Orher income Rupces Rupees
Income from financial assets
Trroit o saving accounts 33,305,263 3,950,230
Income from mon-financial assets
Crain on disposal of property, plant and equipment Mz 8,313,804 3,083
Foreign exchange gain 244 080,221 4793 272
Miscellaneous income 22479 4,907,862
Amortzatgon of deferred income b B2Z24% 10,455 335
287,041,015 69,346,782
23 2
M Finance cost Rupees Rupees
Muvksip bied foans fros conpestinsid ki
- Long term foances - wewred 184 416,030 245 B1E 690
- Shaort term borrowings - sered 2078 455 82 1,324 452514
- Mark-up on lease liabilicy 2 R340 26.6TE 1T
2.442,685,147 1,5%,949,315
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Long term finances - st l E.H_-ﬁ,,"iﬁfll l A A2, 255 I
2,875,330 4,624,283
Bank char i} 5615 2632 3001 143
Other charges 7,529 081 1,630,474
12,944,343 75,531,621
2,458,504 826 1677,105,21%
N 2023 2022
ale

her expenscs Bupees Bupees
Dhnanions T 15,8306, 505 12862 537
Wirkere' Profie Participation Fund 142 HATI001G 56,355,112
128,946,521 69,217,639

During the vear, the Company has paid donation to Instoute For Policy Reforms situated @t 4 - Shami Road Lahose Cantr, Pakistan in which
Mr. Akbar [Khan = a Director. None of other Directors of the Company or their spouses have any tnterest in, or are otheraase associated with

the recipient of donation

2023 2022
- Matr
Taxation Rupces Rupces
Income tax
- Cnrrent 122w 323 TRO9T0 460 467,063,454
- Pricw periad (144,688,374 -
46, 288, 0BG 467,068,454
Deferred tax faz2q [, 414,807 3,711,351
639,573,270 470,776,805

Tax Charge Reconciliation

A numerical reconciliation bemween tax expense and rhe produer of accounting protit multplied by tax rare,

2023 02z
Rupees Rupees
Accounting Profit 2,149,090, 256 Q5B ARE, 342
Tax at the applicable cate of 29% plus super s (2022 29%0) T4, 456,152
Tax for the |_'\-|'i-.|r YEAr 1 -l-l,l’:HH.__?"'-'-lj
Tax effect of super tax 853,727
Inadmissible cxpense 4,592 5846
Exempt income (234,452)
Oihers 4552447
Tax Expense 646, 258 080

Reconciliation beraven tix expense and aceountng profie for the prics year 1 not presented as the lise year provision for current taxation was
based an turnaver tax and final tax under secoon 113 & 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 20000, TEseCy q'|:.'.

Druring the vear minimum tix is adjusted against the normal wax liabilicy caleulared ar the mre of 29% s normal mx labiliey s greaver than
minimum tax this year,

Certain other tax cases noet imvobving material amounts are pending against the Company against which the Company expects favorable
ourcomes and, hence, have not been provided for in these accounts,

Egruings per shave - basic and dilited

2023 2022
Proskir afrer raxanon H.n:.'l:e.- 1,500 217 017 517,711,537
Weighted average number of ordinary shares M of shares 117,706 300 117, 7006300
Bassc earmings per share Ruprees 1282 4.40

There 15 no dilution effect un the basic earnings per share as the Company does naot have any converible instruments in issue as ac 30
September 2023

Nate 2023 2002
Cash and cash equivalents Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances 24 1,009 52 BET 644777345
Shott term borrowings - Running finance 12 (9,512 155) (99, 5402,155)
S0, 490,702 45275 I

ANNUAL REPORT 2023




35

351

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Financial risk management

The Company 15 exposed 1o the Frallov g risks Froam its wse of financial instruments:

1 Credi nsk

2 Liguidiry risk

3 Market osk
This presents informanon abour the Companys exposure to each of the above nsks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and manaping risk, and the Company's management of capiral,

Risk management framework

The Brard of Directors have overall responsibility for establishment and over-sight of the Company's nsk managemene tramework. The
exeCulve management team 18 responsible for developing and monienng the Company'’s risk management policies. The team regulady
meets amd any chanpees and compliance issues are 'r|.'|1-c|2'||.:|,| 1oy the Board of Directors thi gy the Audit Comimiteee,

The Company’ risk managerment policies are established o idemufy and analyze the msks faced by the Company, o et appropoate msk
limits and contrals, and to monitor risks and adherence o limis, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly wo reflece
changes in marker condinons and the Company's acrivines, The Company, through s raining and management srandards and
procedures, ams w0 develop a disciplined and consorucove control environment in which all emplovess understand their roles and
|:-'|:||i|_(.|li<|1'|s.

The Company's Andit Commintes oversees how managernent monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the osk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company, Aodit Commities
iz assisted in itz oversight role by imernal audit department. Internal audit depantment undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of nsk
management controls and |!r|:-|'x'||u|.‘ve'!-:. the results of which are reported to the Audit Committes.

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1= the nsk of financial loss 0 the Company if a customer or counterparty t0 a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
rihligatinns, To manage credir sisk the Company mainrains peocedures covering the applicanion for credic appeovals, granting and reneaal
ol cownterparty limirs and momnitoring ol exposures apainst these lmas, Az part of these proscesses the financial vizhdliry of all

counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed

The cart YN Araent of financial assets fepiesents the maximurm credie EX[HOISLTE hefope a1y credit enhancements The maxinum exprsure

o eredit nsk

hie reparnng dare is:

2023 022
Rupees Hupees
Long term deposits 31,054,663 31,375,803
Trade debrs - congdaned good 3843118 18,480, 272
Adwvances, deposits and other receivables 1,046,986, 167 1 0, 50, A95
Bank balances 1,007 508 445 630,004 130
20K, 0127 663 1,726,427,262
Trade debts
Trade debrs ar the balanee sheer dare are classified in Fak Rupees.
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Exposrt - secwred - -
Local - nusecnred, ensidere good 3,843,118 18,486,272
3,843,118 15,486,272
The aging of local trade receivables at the reporning date is:
Related Parties Others Total
2023 2023 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees
1t 30 days TOBATY 1,657,557 2305534
31 0 90 days - 1,477,544 [,477, 564
708,177 3,134,541 3,643,118
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Related Parties Others Total
2022 2022 2022
Rupees Rupees Rupees
I to 30 days 4,349,171 9278437 13,627 608
31 1o 90 days 5 4 858 604 4,858 604
4,349,111 14,137,110 18,486,272

Trade debts comprise solely of local customers, including Lotte Akhtar Beverages (Pyt,) Lirmnited, an associated company. These include
companies with very good credit history with the Company and are regular in their payments. The management continuously monitors the
repayment capacity and intention of their debtors and extends the credit periods to their customers according to their credit history,
Furthermore, the Company has recovered major portion of its trade debts subsequent to the vear. Resultantly, no impairment allowance
was recorded,

Bank balances

Credit risk is considered minimal since the counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit radng
agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing,
management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Following are the credit

ratings of counterparties with external eredit ratings:

Rating Rating 2023 2022
Shortterm  Long term Agency Rupees Rupees
Al-Baraka Bank Al A+ PACRA 535,057 535,059
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 229,666,443 3,440,227
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA T4R519 [31,016,313
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ Ah+ PACRA 939,112 11247
Dubai Iskamic Bank Al4 AA JCR-VIS B42 (162 2479524
Faysal Bank Limired Al+ AA PACRA 2237 037 157049
Hahib Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCRVTS 8,480 844 4 444 574
MCRB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA M,757.052 170,909,974
Meezan Bank Limited Alt+ AAA JCR-VIS 25T 513 2595152
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA JCR-VI3 3,446,124 2871 364
Samba Bank Limited A-1 Ad JCR-VIS 1,541,786 385,221
Sindh Bank Limited A At JCR-VIS 35,171,023 121 044 802
Sonen Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 2037 473 1,527,692
Summir Bank Limited Suspended JCR-VIS ] #)
The Bank Of Khyber A At JCR-VIS 1,303,979 78,768
The Bank of Punjab Alt Ad+ PACRA Ta0774 2982179
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 618,617,709 183,423,266

1,007,308,495 630,004,229
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353 Liguidity risk

354

Licquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet irs financial obligations as they fall due, The Company’s approach to
managing Uguidity is w0 ensere, as far as possible, that it will always lave sufficient liquidity to meet its labilites when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, For this purpese, the Company has sufficient running finance facilitics available from various commercial
Panks o meet its liquidity requirements. Further, lguidiey position of the Company iz cosely monitored theowgh budgets, cashe flow

riectinns and comparison with 2ctual results by the Board.
P p .

. ity ric

Following are the contractuzl mamntes of the fimancial babilities, including esomated interest payments:
14 ] e [

Contraciual Less than one One to five More than five
Carrying Amount cash flows year years years
September 30, 2023
Long rerm finances - swred 571,654,545 B2,257 045 G02,237 (M5
Lease liabilities 503,675,841 618372912 251 504,232 366,868,680
Shose rerm bossowings-seewred H433 218 407 #4353 218,407 B AN 2R 40T
Teade and other pavables 2270573413 2ETIETIALS 2270573413
Mark-up scerued 359291774 359201 T 3549 201 779 -
12,147, 413,983  12,292,693,556  11,925,324,876 366,868,680 -
Carrying Amount Contractual Less than one One 1o five More than five
cash flows year years VCars
September 30, 2022
Long term finances - sored 1 4600099 738 1,974 280 623 1,205 851 974 T6E 437 649
Lease liabalities 242 250,302 2h58160,162 252,979 243 2,836,919
Short werm borrowings-seonred G097 040,575 9007 D40 575 0,907 (400,575
Teade and other pavahles 3,079 598 266 079598, 260 J079, 598, Xob
Mark-up scerued 431,127,753 431,127 753 431,127 753 L
15,210,116,694 15,737 872,379 14,%66,597,811 771,274,568 -

The contractual cash tows relating mo the above fnancal laklioes have been determined on the basis of mark-up rates effective as ar
I I cash £ lating hove f | Tiail have been d 1 he b £ mark-up feect

September 30, 2023, The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as forcign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The ohjective of market risk management is to manage and coneml
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return, Market rsk comprises of currency risk, inferest rate risk and

other price rsk.
35.4.1 Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is 3 mismatch hetween the currencies in which sales, purchases
and bank bulances are denominared and the respective funcaonal currency of the Company. The functional currency of the

Company &5 Pak Rupee. The currency in which these transactions are primarily dencminated is U Dollars,

Expossre to currency rick
There were no financial assets or financial Bahilities at year end in foreign currencies which are subject o currency risk exposure.
Since the maximum ameunt X sed 1o gurreney sk is Nil (2023 Wi, any adverse [/ favorable movement in the functicnal

currency with sespect ro LS dellar will not have any material impact on the eperational results,
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35.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interese rare risk is the visk thar the fair values or furare cash Aows of Gnancial instrraments will Aucoeare due o changes in market

interest eates, Significant interest eate risk cxposures are primerily managed by a mix of boreowings at varable interest rares, At the

reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instroments was as follows:

- Financial assets

Fived rate instrimants

Bank balances - ey s

2023 2022 2023 2022
Effective rate Cartying amount
-----Percentage----- = c-c---aa Rupees - ------
LH%0 to 22,5% 10 e 13.2% BUATL 548 22323042
2023 22 2023 2022

Financial liabiliries
Floating rate instrment
Long term fnances - sared
Lease liabilioy

Short term borrowings - e

Export refinance facility - reovred

Effective rate

== --- Percentage - - - - -

5.00% m 18.74%
84 Ye- 15501
10288 - 19,16%:

S00P% - 23.76%
21.37% - 28.49%

18.51% - 27010

_-'!-'I.';| - |_|P!r'||_,"
]2.'-' H"'u bl 15.{Ir"""||

s

1['. ::‘d.""u' I ”.IH be

Carrying amount

------- Rupees-------
571,654,543 1,460,099,738
503,675,841 242,250,362

2125718407 4961428573
6,307 500,000 5,0135,612,002

The Company does not aceount for any fixed rare financial assets and labilices at fair valoe through profic or loss. Therefore, a

change in interest raves at the reporting dave would not affect profic or loss aceount.

5

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have inereased / (decreased) peofit or loss for the year by

the amounes shown below, This analysis assumes thar all nther variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant,

Effect on profit - Increase

Effect on profit - Decrease

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

32,010,448 06,637,787

(32,010,488) (66,637,787

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessaily indicative of the effects on profic / (loss) for the year and assets [/ labilities of

the Company.

Interest rate risk managenient

The Company manages interest mare sk through nsk managrement straregres whene sigmificant changes in gap posidon can be

adjusred, The short rerm borrowings and loans & advances oo the f,'ump:mj.' have vamable rare priun_g thar is mostly [I;“p-:-n:l::nr on

KIBOR as indicated in respective notes,

35.4.3 Other price risk

Ovther price risk is the risk thar the fair value or fure eash flows of a financial instrument will flucrare because of changes in

market prices (other than those arising from interest rate sk or currency 0sk). The Company helieves thar it is not exposed o

other price risk,
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Capital management

The Board's policy ds to maintain an efficient capiral base 5o as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and ro sustain the
future development of its husiness, The Board of Ditectors monitor the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as
operating incimme divided by total capital employed. The Board of Direcrors also monitor the level of dividends wo ordinary sharcholders,
The Company's objecrives when managing capiral are:

[i; tix hal-ugu.’ml the f‘.mnr&m}'s a]:ﬂil:.' I ConEnee a5 a guiugfuucurn, g0 that it can continue 1o |'lrlnjcl{.' retarns for shareholders and

benchits for other stakeholders, and

i) o provide an adequate return to shaveholders
The Company manages its capital strucrure in the context of economic condinons and the risk characrerisoes of the undeslving assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for cxample, adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, issuc
new shares, or sell assets w0 reduce debt. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debe-w-equiry rato - caloulaed as 2 rago of
long term debt to equity.

The debt-to-eauity ratios as at 0™ Seprember are as follows;

2023 w2

Rupees Rupees
Dt 1,173,330, 354 L,703,172,345
Faquity 12508,136,652 11,006,067 407
Total 13,673,467,056  12,769,239,735
Gearing ratio 8% 13%
The Company is less geared as compared to last year.
Accounting classification and fair values
September 30, 2023 Carrying amount Fair value

Fair value Badi valie Ar Amortized

Total . ]
through Profit or through OCI s o Levell Level2 Lewel 3
Luoss

Financial assets
Long term deposits - - 31,689 483 31,689,883
Trade debs - considered pood . - T3 118 3,845,118
Advances, deposits, prepayments Lidngse 167 1,046,986,167
& other receivahles
Cazh and bank balances - - 1009992 857 1,009,992 857

- - 2092512025  2,092,512,025 - Z i
Financial liabilities
Long term finances - remred - i 571,654,543 571,654,543
Lease lishilities : : SISETSA4L 503,675,841
Shoet term borrowings - el BANIZIEANT  8,433,218407
Trade and other payables = : 22T05TIAL 0 2270573413
Mark-up accrued - . a4 201,79 359,201,779

- - 12,147,413,983 12,147 413,983 - - -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023




TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

September 3, 2022 (2:er}-ing amount Fair value
Fair value =
through Profit or 'hl-"air e At smpdicd Taotal Levell Level2 Level 3
Fiins rough OCT ot
Financial assets
Lo term deposits B & 3, 375803 31,375,863
Trade debts - awsdered g - - 15,486,272 18,486,272
Advances, deposits, prepayments 10500898 1,046,5640,898
& other receivables
Cash & bank balances = z 044,777 345 644,777,345

- 2 1,741,200,376  1,741,200,378 = _ i

Financial liabilitics

Long serm finances - reswred - - 1, 460,099,738 1, 460,099,738
Lease habalities 242 230,362 242 250,362
Short term borrorwings - sned "-',"-"::'._,U-ﬁl,ﬂ._i" 9,9':’7,']44],5?5
Trade and other payables - : FOTuAUE 200 3,079,598, 266
Mark-up accrued - - 431,127,753 431,127,753

_ - 15,210, 116,6%4  15,210,116,694 - - _

The abowe table presents assets and babihoes carned at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1 - Cruoted prices (unadjusted) in acave markets for idendcal assets or liabilites
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thar are observable for the asset or lahality, erither divecey (Le, as prices) or
incirectly (Le. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset of lability that ane not based on observable market dae.
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37.8  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

37.8.1 Revenues

Total revenue for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Consolidared revenue

37.8.2 Profit or loss before tax and other expenses

Total profit for reportable segments

Un-allocated corporate expenses
- Chtlher encheatses
- Ohther incame
Torcaion
Consolidared profic afier rax

37.8.3 Assers

Total assets for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment assers

Consolidated assets

37.8.4 Liabilities
Total liabilinies for reporrable segments
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 2022
Bupees Rupees
42 290 (87 513 32,299 965,742
42,290,087,513 32,299,965,782
1,990,995,802 UEE,359,199
(128,946,521) (69,217 639)

287,041,015
(639,873,279

69,346,782
(470,776,805)

1,509,217,017

517,711,537

0,807.275,254

31,898,486,705

30,807,275,254

31,898,486,705

18,200,138,602 20,832,419,208
18,209,138,602 20,832,419,298
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3 Capacity and production 2023
Swegar plant Umnit [ Unie IL Unie 11 Tatal
Crushing capacity (Metric wins) 1,56:2,500 2000000 2,500,000 i, 62, 500
based on 125 davs - (Season 2022-20275)
Sugar produced (Metric fons) 90,209 150,516 112 548 333,663
Recovery ratio TT60% A.43%% 0.730% B.64%

2022
Sugar plant Unit I Unie IT Unie ITI Tuotal
i :l.‘l.lw'.hlrlg 1':-a|‘.n.'|l."il:. -f:."|||.'lril.' I|'-|'|x'} 1,562 5011 20N 2 500k ﬁ.,[lﬁz,iﬂﬂ
based on 125 days - (Season 2021-2022)
Sugar produced (Metrie tans) U702 [IER.. 154,683 356,613
Recovery eatio B2 U 42%n a2y 9,22
2023 2022

Rated capaeity {Litees)
Aetual producticen (Litres)

Ethanol - Distillery plamt IT

Rated capacity {Litres)
Actual producticn (Litres)

Top Gas - Carbon diodgde plant

Rated capacity (Metric mns)
Acoual producnon (Metric tons)

Based on 330 days

41, 250000
MLETIO00

41,250,000
35,823,750

4o 200000 4, ZU0 TR
44,451,538 152,500
2023 2022
Based on 300 days
14,400 14,4000
5308 6,136

Reduced capacity wilizaton is due m the less availabilicy of sugarcane ar the swrt and end of crushing season, which resulted in the

3

operations of the company below the crushing capaciry,

Remuneration of Chiefl Executive, Ditectors and Executives

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial srarements for the year

Drirectors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

for remuneration, including all beaetits o the Chiet Execurve,

Managerial femuneration
Medical allowance
House rent allowance
Staff retirement benefits

Mumber of persons

Managerial remuneration
Medical allovwrance
Howse rent allowanes
Staff rerirement benelits

N IJI'ﬂ.I T A rl- I'II.'I"'JZ HI15

2023
Chief Exccutive Directors Executives
e ——— Rupees s=semeemaremare=n -
24 SOOI Th,176,959
- ZARMO0D 3,490,336
- 0920000 23479 822
00000 H.3537,051
- 10,3400, (WD 114,498,188
1 2 42
2022
Chief Executive Diirectors Execcutives
....................... Ru-pggg T ———
Z4 BO0000 423,557
2 AB0L000 17,013,521
- 0,920,000 26,760,952
- 3 100000 0,573,881
- 40, 300,000 124,676,911
1 2 kT

39.1 The Chief Execurve Cfficer, Direcrors and Execurves are prowided with frec use nf Company mainmained cars

3.2 No meetng fee was paid to Directors l;:II.II'IIIé_r\I the year {2022; Nil).

3.3 Execudves are emplovees whose basic salanes exceed Rs. 1.2 million in a financial vear,
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

40 Number of employees 2023 2022
Numbet Number
The average and total number of employees are as follows:
Total employees
Averape number of employees during the vear 1,785 1,851
Total number of emplovees as ar 30 Seprember 1,775 1,795

Factory emplovees

Average number of employees during the year | 6R7 1,754

Total number of employees as at 30 September 1677 1,697

41 Transactions with related parties

The relared parties comprise direcrors of the Company, key emplovees, associated undertakings and holding company, Details of

transactions with relaced parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as

follows:

: 2023 2022
Name of party Relationship Nature of Transactions

Rupees Rupees

Lotte Akhtar Beverages Common Sale of Top Gas L3 A98,117 MATIRI
(Pvt.) Limited directorship Receipts against sale of Top Gas 47139110 33896672
The Institute for Policy Comiman Doraten 13,836,505 12 862 527
Refisrms directorship
Superor Textile Mills Comman Advances provided Th, 288,000 30,000,000
Limited directorship Advances received 3,000,000
Ms. Rasheeda Begum Director Gruest house rent expense 4800,000 4 BO0O00

41 Events after the statement of financial position date
There are no subsequent evenes occurnng after the statement of financial position date that will aftect these financial statements,
43 Date of authorization for issue December 29, 2023
These financial statements were authorized for issue on December 29, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the Company,
# General
441 Figures have been rounded off to the nearesr Rupee.

4.2 Cf]ff{‘c'ﬁl?]'lﬁii]]ﬂ ﬁ"".l.l't":i have been re-areanped and descriptions '&I'L'I'L‘ﬂllt‘l.l.. wherever necessary rll']l' the purpose of comparison and better
I B -} )
pl’E.‘iL"I’IHTiI'jI'I.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Proxy Form
Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd.
35" Annual General Meeting

Falio Mo./CDC Afc No.

I/We of

in the district of being a member/members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd
halding shares of Rs.10 each, hereby appoint Mr./Ms.

of a member of the Company, vide Registered Falio/CDC Afc
Mo. or failing him { her, as my/our proxy to vote

for mefus and on myfour behalf at the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be hold at Marina

Event Complex 333-AA off Raiwind Road, Lahore on Saturday lanuary 20, 2024 at 10:00 am and at any adjournment

thereof or of any ballot to be taken in consequence thereof,

Signed this day of January, 2024
Witnesses:
1. Signature:

Mame:

CHIC:

Address:

Affix Revenue
Stamp of Rupees
Five
Signature by Member(s)

2. Signature:

Mame:

CNIC:

Address:
Mote:

All proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not less than forty eight
{48) hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and
witnessed as required.
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